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ACT OF 1934
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days.    Yes  x    No  ¨.
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of
this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and
post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨.
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of the Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  ¨
Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or
a smaller reporting company. See the definition of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer”, and “small reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer ¨ Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x
The aggregate market value of the Common Stock outstanding and held by non-affiliates (as defined in Rule 405
under the Securities Act of 1933) of the registrant based upon the closing sale price of the Common Stock on the
NASDAQ Global Select Market on June 30, 2014, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed
second quarter, was approximately $455.3 million.
As of February 20, 2015, the number of common shares outstanding was: 30,948,173 
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders
(2014 Proxy Statement) are incorporated by reference into Part III of this report.
Exhibit Index begins on Page 88
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Safe Harbor Statement
Certain information set forth herein includes statements that express our opinions, expectations, beliefs, plans,
objectives, assumptions or projections regarding future events or future results and, therefore, are, or may be deemed
to be, “forward-looking statements.” These forward-looking statements can generally be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology, including the terms “believes,” “estimates,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “estimates,” “seeks,” “projects,”
“intends,” “plans,” “may,” “will” or “should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology.
These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They include statements regarding
our intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, our results of operations, financial
condition, liquidity, prospects, growth, competition, strategies and the industry in which we operate. By their nature,
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
that may or may not occur in the future. We believe that these risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to,
those described in Item 1A “Risk Factors.” Those factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read with
the other cautionary statements in Item 1A “Risk Factors”. Although we base these forward-looking statements on
assumptions that we believe are reasonable when made, we caution you that forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity and the
development of the industries in which we operate may differ materially from those made in or suggested by the
forward-looking statements contained herein. In addition, even if our results of operations, financial condition and
liquidity and the development of the industries in which we operate are consistent with the forward-looking statements
contained in this document, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods. Given these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statements that we make herein speak only as of the date of those
statements, and we undertake no obligation to update those statements or to publicly announce the results of any
revisions to any of those statements to reflect future events or developments. Comparisons of results for current and
any prior periods are not intended to express any future trends or indications of future performance, unless expressed
as such, and should only be viewed as historical data.
PART I

Item 1. Business
The Company
Gibraltar is a leading manufacturer and distributor of products that provide structural and architectural enhancements
for residential homes, low-rise retail, other commercial and professional buildings, industrial plants, bridges and a
wide-variety of other structures. These products include roof and foundation ventilation products, mail and package
storage products, rain dispersion products and roof ventilation accessories, fabricated bar grating for industrial
flooring, expanded and perforated metal, plus expansion joints and structural bearings for roadways and bridges.
We serve customers primarily throughout North America and Europe, and, to a lesser extent, in Asia, Africa,
Australia, and Central and South America. Our customers include major home improvement retailers, wholesalers,
and industrial distributors and contractors. As of December 31, 2014, we operated 42 facilities in 22 states, Canada,
England, and Germany, which includes 32 manufacturing facilities and eight distribution centers, giving us a base of
operations to provide customer support, delivery, service and quality to a number of regional and national customers
and providing us with manufacturing and distribution efficiencies in North America, as well as a presence in the
European market.
The Company operates and reports its results in the following two operating segments, entitled “Residential Products”
and “Industrial and Infrastructure Products”.
Our Residential Products segment focuses on the new residential housing construction and residential repair and
remodeling activity. Its products are sold through major retail home centers, building material wholesalers, buying
groups, roofing distributors, and residential contractors.
Our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment focuses on a variety of markets including discrete and process
manufacturing, highway and bridge construction markets, energy and power generation. This segment’s products are
distributed through industrial, commercial and transportation contractors, industrial distributors and original
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The following table sets forth the primary products, applications, and end markets for each segment:
Residential Products Segment

Product Applications End Market

Roof & foundation ventilation
products

Ventilation & whole-house air
flow

Residential: new construction
and repair and remodeling

Postal and parcel storage (single and
cluster)

Mail and package delivery; secure
storage

Rain dispersion, trims and flashings,
other accessories Water protection; sun protection

Industrial and Infrastructure Products Segment

Product Applications End Market

Bar grating Flooring, walkways, platforms,
safety barriers

Discrete and process manufacturing;
energy; power generation

Expanded metal and perforated metal
Security barriers / fencing;
walkways / catwalks; filtration;
architectural facades

Low-rise commercial; leisure and
hospitality; automotive

Structural bearings and expansion
joints for bridges and other structures

Preserve functionality under
varying weight, wind, heat and
seismic conditions

Bridge and elevated highway
construction

We believe that we have established a reputation as an industry leader in both of our operating segments with respect
to quality, service and innovation and have achieved strong competitive positions in our markets. We attribute our
standing in the markets primarily to the following competitive strengths:
Leading market share. We have a leading market position in many of the products and services we offer, and we
estimate that a majority of our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 were derived from the sale of products
in which we had one of the leading U.S. market shares. We believe we have leading market shares in four distinct
product families: roof-related ventilation; postal and parcel storage; bar grating; structural bearings and expansion
joints for bridges and other structures.
Provider of value-added products and services. We increasingly focus on value-added products and services, such as
mail and package storage solutions, expansion joints and structural bearings for roadways and bridges, and ventilation
products, to improve our margins and profitability. We use complex and demanding production and treatment
processes that require advanced production equipment, sophisticated technology and exacting quality control
measures. We have also targeted our acquisition strategy on manufacturers of value-added products in key growth
platforms.
Solid relationships with blue-chip customers. We have strong relationships with our customers which include the
largest distributors in the markets we serve. We have gained long-standing relationships, and we maintained and
developed those relationships by offering an increasing range of products and providing quality customer support.
Commitment to quality. We place great importance on providing our customers with high quality products for use in
critical construction applications. We carefully select our raw material vendors and use inspection and analysis to
maintain our quality standards so our products meet critical customer specifications. To meet customer specifications,
we use documented procedures utilizing statistical process control systems linked directly to processing equipment to
monitor many stages of production. A number of our facilities’ quality systems are registered under ISO 9001, an
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Strong liquidity profile. We had no borrowings under our revolving credit facility during the year ended December 31,
2014, and our liquidity as of December 31, 2014 was $209 million, including $111 million of cash and $98 million of
availability under our revolving credit facility. We believe that our low leverage and increased liquidity allows us to
successfully manage our business, meet the demands of our customers, weather the cyclicality of certain end markets
and take advantage of growth opportunities.

History of growth through acquisitions. Over the last decade, we have grown through acquisitions, such as D.S.
Brown (expansion joints and bearing for roads and bridges), Florence Manufacturing (mail storage) and Alabama
Metal Industries Corporation (bar grating, expanded and perforated metal products), to help diversify our products and
customers while growing our net sales and earnings, and improving our operating characteristics.
Recent developments
Structured succession plan. As part of a multi-year strategy developed by the board, an executive search committee
was created to execute the Company’s succession plan. The executive search committee consisted of board members
who used an outside firm to identify potential candidates to fill the vacated President and Chief Operating Officer role
and eventually assume the Chief Executive Office role. After an extensive search process, Frank Heard was hired in
May 2014 as President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Heard joined our company with extensive experience in the
building products industry from his 32 years of employment at Illinois Tool Works, Inc. In December 2014, the board
announced the remainder of the succession plan and named Mr. Heard as the President and Chief Executive Officer
effective January 1, 2015.
Mr. Heard succeeds Brian Lipke who had been our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) since 1987, the Chairman of our
Board since 1992 and a director since the Company’s initial public offering. Mr. Lipke announced his retirement as
CEO in December 2014 and will continue to serve as Executive Chairman of the Board until May 31, 2015 when he
will retire from the Board. At that time, William Montague, the Company’s Lead Independent Director will assume the
Chairman role.
In conjunction with the succession plan, several transitions were made to the Board of Directors. Two directors retired
at the end of 2014 and two other directors, including Mr. Lipke, will retire in May 2015. Three new board members
were elected and began service during 2014 in order to facilitate a smooth transition upon the retirement of the
seasoned directors. These new board members bring a complement of industry and governmental experience to the
board. Mr. Heard was also elected a director of the Company effective January 1, 2015.

Experienced Management Team. Our executive management team is composed of talented and experienced managers
possessing broad experience in operational excellence, new product development, and driving profitable growth
gained over multiple business cycles. Along with the employment of Mr. Heard in 2014 as President and subsequent
appointment as Chief Executive Officer, we made other senior leadership changes, including the hiring and
appointment of Kevin Viravec, the Industrial and Infrastructure Products President, along with the hiring of Paul
Plourde, in a newly created position as leader of business development. Other developments include changes in
leadership in our Residential Products segment for both our postal and parcel products and our ventilation and
roofing-related products, where Stephen Duffy and Charles Jerasa assumed new leadership positions, respectively.
Operational excellence. Our strategy is to position Gibraltar as a low-cost provider and a market share leader in
product areas that offer the opportunity for sales growth and margin enhancement over the long-term. We focus on
operational excellence, including lean initiatives throughout the Company to position Gibraltar as our customers’
low-cost provider of the products we offer. We continuously seek to improve our on-time delivery, quality and service
to position Gibraltar as a preferred supplier to our customers. During recent years, Gibraltar invested in new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) systems which, among other things, have enabled us to more effectively manage our
inventory, forecast customer orders, improve supply chain management and respond more timely to volatile raw
material costs. At the same time, we have significantly reduced our working capital levels while maintaining a high
level of customer service.
Economic Trends
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End markets served by our business are subject to economic conditions which include but are not limited to interest
rates, commodity costs, demand for residential construction, demand for repair and remodeling, government funding,
and the level of industrial construction and transportation infrastructure projects.
During 2014 and 2013, residential construction markets continued to recover with housing starts approaching 1.0
million in 2014. Residential repair and remodel activity also continued to improve over the past two years; however,
re-roofing activity, which correlates to demand for our roof-related products, declined from 2013. While very little
market lift from the residential
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housing market was experienced during 2014, we generated incremental sales of our centralized mail storage products
as postal authorities continue transitioning from door-to-door delivery.
In our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment, sales declined slightly for 2014. The sales decrease was
primarily impacted by continuing uncertainty of government funding for U.S. transportation projects. The current
federal appropriation was a nine-month extension ending May 2015. As a result, sales of our bearings and expansion
joints for bridges and elevated highways decreased in 2014 compared to 2013.
Commodity raw material prices for materials such as steel, aluminum and resins, have also fluctuated during the past
several years. These fluctuations impact the cost of raw materials we purchase and the pricing we offer to our
customers. Volatility in commodity prices in combination with pressure to reduce prices to customers over the past
few years have led to declining margins on our product sales.
Industry Overview
Our business occupies an intermediate market between the primary steel, aluminum, resin, and other basic material
producers and the wholesale, retail building supply, manufacturing, and highway construction markets. The primary
material producers typically focus on producing high volumes of their product. We purchase raw materials from these
producers and, through various production processes, convert these raw materials into specialized products for use in
the construction or repair and remodel of residential and low-rise commercial buildings, and industrial and
transportation structures. We primarily distribute our products through wholesale distributors, retailers and
contractors.
Products
Residential Products
The Residential Products segment is primarily, but not exclusively, a manufacturer of metal and resin-based products
used in residential new construction and for home repair and remodeling. We operate 14 manufacturing facilities and
four distribution centers throughout the United States giving us a base of operations to provide customer support,
delivery, service, and quality to a number of regional and national customers, and providing us with manufacturing
and distribution efficiencies in North America.
We manufacture an extensive variety of products that are sold through a number of sales channels including major
retail home centers, building material wholesalers, buying groups, roofing distributors, and residential contractors.
Our product offerings include a full line of roof and foundation ventilation products and accessories, including solar
powered units; postal and parcel storage products, including single mailboxes, cluster boxes for multi-unit housing
and package delivery systems; roof edging and flashing; soffits and trim; drywall corner bead; metal roofing and
accessories; and rain dispersion products, including gutters and accessories; and exterior retractable awnings; each of
which can be sold separately or as an integral part of a program sale.
We improve our offerings of residential products by introducing new products, enhancing existing products, adjusting
product specifications to respond to building code and regulatory changes, and providing additional solutions to
homeowners and contractors. New products introduced in recent years include roof top safety kits, chimney caps, heat
trace coils and exterior, remote-controlled deck awnings for sun protection, and solar-powered ventilation products.
Our ventilation and roof flashing products afford protection and extend the life of structures while providing a safer,
healthier environment for the residents. Our cluster box mail delivery products provide delivery cost savings to the
postal service while offering secure storage for delivered mail and packages. Our building products are manufactured
primarily from galvanized and painted steel, anodized and painted aluminum, and various resins.
Our production capabilities allow us to process a wide range of metals and plastics necessary for manufacturing
residential products. Most of our production is completed using automatic roll forming machines, stamping presses,
paint lines, and injection molding equipment. We maintain our equipment with a thorough preventive maintenance
program allowing us to meet the demanding quality and delivery requirements of our customers. Gibraltar also
sources some products from third-party vendors when cost savings can be generated.
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Industrial and Infrastructure Products
The Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment is primarily, but not exclusively, a manufacturer and distributor of
metal products used in a variety of end markets such as discrete and process manufacturing, highway and bridge
construction, energy and mining. We operate 16 manufacturing facilities and five distribution centers throughout the
United States, Canada, England, and Germany, giving us a base of operations to provide customer support, delivery,
service, and quality to a number of regional and national customers, and providing us with manufacturing and
distribution efficiencies in North America, as well as a presence in the European market.
We manufacture an extensive variety of products that are sold through a number of sales channels including industrial,
commercial and transportation contractors and industrial fabricators.

Our product offerings include a full line of fabricated bar grating and safety plank grating used in industrial flooring,
walkways, stairs, platforms, safety barriers, drainage covers, and ventilation grates; expanded and perforated metal
used in walkways, catwalks, automotive systems, shelving, fencing, barriers, and other applications where both
visibility and security are necessary; fiberglass grating used in areas where high strength, light weight, low
maintenance, and corrosion resistance are required; and expansion joint systems, bearing assemblies, and pavement
sealing systems used in bridges, elevated highways, airport runways, and rail crossings.
We improve our offerings of industrial and infrastructure products by introducing new products, enhancing existing
products, adjusting product specifications to respond to commercial building code and regulatory changes, and
providing additional solutions to original equipment manufacturers and contractors. New products introduced in
recent years include customized perforated and expanded metal to penetrate a range of new markets such as
architectural facades for buildings (museums, sports stadiums and retail outlets); front grilles for a major truck tractor
manufacturer; interior ceilings and lighting fixtures; and outdoor railings and balustrades. Our expanded grating
fabrication capabilities have been successfully serving new applications such as wind towers and our newly developed
manufacturing process of aluminum-swaged grating has extended our sales penetration into the water and wastewater
markets. In addition, we have extended our transportation infrastructure products into new markets. For example,
long-lasting pavement sealants for roadways are now being installed on airport runways; structural bearings for
elevated highways and bridges have been installed on an offshore oil production platform; and corrosion-protection
products for cable-suspension bridges are now marketed and sold internationally.
Our production capabilities allow us to process a wide range of metals necessary for manufacturing industrial
products. Most of our production is completed using computer numerical control “CNC” machines, shears, slitters, press
brakes, milling, welding, and numerous automated assembly machines. We maintain our equipment with a thorough
preventive maintenance program, including in-house tool and die shops, allowing us to meet the demanding service
requirements of many of our customers.

Overall
Gibraltar focuses on operational excellence by making our production process as efficient as possible without
compromising the quality our customers expect from us. Our focus on efficiency relies upon continuous improvement
at our plants and distribution centers where we have continued lean manufacturing practices. Additionally, we have
implemented ERP systems that allow for just-in-time delivery of materials, efficient production planning, and
eliminate manual efforts in the manufacturing process. Improvements in our manufacturing process have enabled
Gibraltar to better control manufacturing costs while focusing on new product development and quality. Continued
focus on operational excellence will remain a significant initiative as Gibraltar strives to be the low-cost manufacturer
of our products.
Quality Assurance
We place great importance on providing our customers with high-quality products for use in critical construction
applications. We carefully select our raw material vendors and use inspection and analysis to maintain our quality
standards so our products meet critical customer specifications. To meet customer specifications, we use documented
procedures utilizing statistical process control systems linked directly to processing equipment to monitor many stages
of production. A number of our facilities’ quality systems are registered under ISO 9001, an internationally recognized
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disciplines it promotes help ensure the high quality products our customers expect.
Technical Services
We employ a staff of engineers and other technical personnel and maintain fully-equipped, modern laboratories to
support our operations. These laboratories enable us to verify, analyze, and document the physical, chemical,
metallurgical, and mechanical
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properties of our raw materials and products. In addition, our engineering staff employs a range of drafting software to
design highly specialized and technically precise products. Technical service personnel also work in conjunction with
our sales force to determine the types of products and services required for the particular needs of our customers.
Suppliers and Raw Materials
Our business is required to maintain sufficient quantities of raw material inventory in order to accommodate our
customers’ short lead times and just-in-time delivery requirements. Accordingly, we plan our purchases to maintain
raw materials at sufficient levels to satisfy the anticipated needs of our customers. We have implemented ERP systems
to better manage our inventory, forecast customer orders, enable efficient supply chain management, and allow for
more timely counter-measures to changing customer demand and market conditions.
The primary raw materials we purchase are flat-rolled and plate steel, aluminum, and resins. We purchase flat-rolled
and plate steel and aluminum at regular intervals on an as-needed basis, primarily from the major North American
mills, as well as a limited amount from domestic service centers and foreign steel importers. Substantially all of our
resins are purchased from domestic vendors, primarily through distributors with a small amount direct from
manufacturers. Supply has been adequate from these sources to fulfill our needs. Because of our strategy to develop
longstanding relationships in our supply chain, we have been able to adjust our deliveries of raw materials to match
our required inventory positions to support our on-time deliveries to customers while allowing us to manage our
investment in inventory and working capital.
The cost of our raw material purchases of steel, aluminum, and resins is significantly linked to commodity markets.
The markets for commodities are highly cyclical and the costs of purchasing these raw materials can be volatile due to
a number of factors including general economic conditions, domestic and worldwide demand, labor costs,
competition, import duties, tariffs, and currency exchange rates. Changes in commodity costs not only impact the cost
of our raw materials but also influence the prices we offer our customers. We have largely managed fluctuations in the
market by maintaining lean inventory levels and increasing the efficiency of our manufacturing processes, however in
limited situations, where we have fixed price contacts to supply goods covering multiple quarters, we have used hedge
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in commodity costs.
We purchase natural gas and electricity from suppliers in proximity to our operations.
We have no long-term contractual commitments with our suppliers. Management continually examines and improves
our purchasing practices across our geographically dispersed facilities in order to streamline purchasing across similar
commodities.
Intellectual Property
We actively protect our proprietary rights throughout North America and Europe by the use of trademark, copyright,
and patent registrations and use our intellectual property in the business activities of each business unit. While no
individual item of our intellectual property is considered material, we believe our trademarks, copyrights, and patents
provide us with a competitive advantage when marketing our products to customers. Our brands are well recognized
in the markets we serve and we believe they stand for high-quality manufactured goods at a competitive price. These
trademarks and trade names allow us to maintain product leadership positions for the goods we offer.

Sales and Marketing
Our products and services are sold primarily by channel partners who are called on by our sales personnel and outside
sales representatives located throughout the United States, Canada, and Europe. We have organized sales teams to
focus on specific customers and national accounts through which we provide enhanced supply solutions and improve
our ability to increase the number of products that we sell. Our sales staff works with certain retail customers to
optimize shelf space for our products which is expected to increase sales at these locations.
We focus on providing our customers with industry leading customer service. Our business units generate numerous
publications, catalogs, and other printed materials to facilitate the ordering process. In addition, we provide our retail
customers with point-of-sale marketing aids to encourage consumer spending on our products in their stores.
Continual communication with our customers allows us to understand their concerns and provides us with the
capability to identify solutions that will meet our customers’ needs. We offer our customers prompt service and short
lead times because we have the ability to successfully meet short deadlines. Gibraltar is able to meet our customers’
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Customers and Distribution
Our customers are located primarily throughout North America and Europe, and, to a lesser extent, in Asia, Africa,
Australia, Central and South America. Our Residential Products segment operates principally in the residential new
construction and repair and remodeling markets. Our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment serves a variety of
commercial construction and industrial markets; bridge and highway construction markets; and a variety of industrial
markets. A majority of our products are sold through sales channels. Major customers include home improvement
retailers, building product distributors, residential contractors, and postal services for our Residential Products
segment. Discrete and process manufacturers, transportation contractors and automotive suppliers are major customers
in our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment. One customer within our Residential Products segment, a home
improvement retailer, represented 12% of our consolidated net sales for 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. No other
customer in either segment accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated net sales.
Our products are distributed to our customers using common carriers and our own fleet of trucks. We maintain
distribution centers that complement our manufacturing plants from which we ship products and ensure on-time
delivery while maintaining efficiency within our distribution process. In recent years, we have consolidated a number
of distribution centers. Increased efficiency within our distribution network allowed us to eliminate costs from our
business while continuing to provide excellent service to our customers.
Backlog
While the majority of our products have short lead time order cycles, certain business units have backlog aggregating
nearly $107 million at December 31, 2014. We believe that the majority of our backlog will be shipped during 2015.
Competition
Gibraltar operates in highly competitive markets. We compete against several competitors in our Residential Products
segment and Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment, and, are different in each major product category. A few
of our competitors may be larger, have greater financial resources, or have less financial leverage than we do. As a
result, these competitors may be better positioned to respond to any downward pricing pressure or other adverse
economic or industry conditions or to identify and acquire companies or product lines compatible with their business.
We compete with competitors based on the range of products offered, quality, price, and delivery. Although some of
our competitors are large companies, the majority are small to medium-sized and do not offer the large range of
building products we do.
The prices paid for raw materials used in our operations, primarily steel, aluminum, and resins, are volatile due to a
number of factors beyond our control, including but not limited to supply shortages, general industry and economic
conditions, labor costs, import duties, tariffs, and currency exchange rates. Although we have strategies to help
mitigate the volatility in raw material costs, such as reducing inventory levels, our competitors who chose not to
maintain inventories as large as ours may be better able to mitigate the effects of this volatility and, thereby, compete
effectively against us on product price.
We believe our broad range of products, high quality, and sustained ability to meet exacting customer delivery
requirements gives us a competitive advantage over many of our competitors.

Employees
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we employed 2,416 and 2,274 employees, respectively. Approximately 12% of our
workforce was represented by unions through various collective bargaining agreements (CBAs) as of December 31,
2014. Three of our CBAs will expire and will be renegotiated in 2015. We historically have had good relationships
with our unions and we expect future negotiations with our unions to result in contracts that provide benefits that are
consistent with those provided in our current agreements.
Seasonality
Our net sales and income are generally lower in the first and fourth quarters compared to the second and third quarters
primarily due to the seasonality of construction activity. Our sales volume is driven by residential renovation and
other industrial construction activities which typically peak during warmer weather and decline due to inclement
weather in the winter months. Operating margins are impacted by this seasonality because Gibraltar’s operating costs
have fixed cost components.
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Governmental Regulation
Our manufacturing facilities and distribution centers are subject to many federal, state, and local requirements relating
to the protection of the environment. Our production processes use some environmentally sensitive materials. For
example, we lubricate our machines with oil and use oil baths to treat some of our products. While we cannot
guarantee that we will not incur material expenses to comply with environmental requirements, we believe that we
operate our business in material compliance with all environmental laws and regulations, do not anticipate any
material expenditures to continue to meet environmental requirements, and do not believe that future compliance with
such laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
However, we could incur operating costs or capital expenditures in complying with new or more stringent
environmental requirements in the future or with current requirements if they are applied to our facilities in a way we
do not anticipate. In addition, new or more stringent regulation of our energy suppliers could cause them to increase
the price of energy they supply us.
Our operations are also governed by many other laws and regulations covering our labor relationships, the zoning of
our facilities, our general business practices, and other matters. We believe that we are in material compliance with
these laws and regulations and do not believe that future compliance with such laws and regulations will have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
Internet Information
Copies of the Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form
8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 are available free of charge through the Company’s website (www.gibraltar1.com) as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Company electronically files the material with, or furnishes it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Future results and the market price for Gibraltar’s common shares are subject to numerous risks, many which are
driven by factors that cannot be controlled or predicted. The following discussion, as well as other sections of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “PART II — Item 7. — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” describe certain business risks. Consideration should be given to the risk factors
described below as well as those in the Safe Harbor Statement at the beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
in conjunction with reviewing the forward-looking statements and other information contained in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. These risks are not the only risks we face. Our business operations could also be affected by additional
factors that are not presently known to us or that we currently consider to be immaterial in our operations.
Macroeconomic factors outside of our control may adversely affect our business, our industry, and the businesses and
industries of many of our customer and suppliers
Macroeconomic factors may have a significant impact on our business, including our ability to generate profitable
margins, customer demand and the availability of credit and other capital. The impacts of future economic conditions
and government measures to aid economic growth, as well as the growing debt levels of the United States and other
countries, especially in Europe, continue to be unknown. The changing costs of energy, in particular oil, could
negatively impact demand for our bar grating and expanded metal products. In addition, the strengthening of the U.S.
dollar impacts the prices we charge and costs we incur to export and import products. We are unable to predict the
strength, pace or sustainability of economic changes or the effects of government intervention or debt levels. The
construction market has shown signs of stabilizing. However, global economic conditions remain fragile, and the
possibility remains that the domestic or global economies, or certain industry sectors of those economies that are key
to our sales, may continue to be slow or could further deteriorate, which could result in a corresponding decrease in
demand for our products and negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.
Our amount of indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit
our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry, and prevent us from meeting our obligations.
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We had total indebtedness of $214 million as of December 31, 2014. The following chart shows our level of
indebtedness and certain other information as of December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Senior subordinated notes $210,000
Other debt 3,600
Total debt $213,600
Shareholders’ equity $387,229
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (1) 2.38x

1

 For purposes of calculating the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings consist of income before taxes minus
capitalized interest plus intangible asset impairment charges plus fixed charges. Fixed charges include interest
expense (including amortization of debt issuance costs), capitalized interest, the portion of operating rental expense
that management believes is representative of the interest component of rent expense, and the interest on uncertain
tax positions.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow from operating results and other sources to service all of our
indebtedness, including the 6.25% Senior Subordinated Notes (6.25% Notes), and may be forced to take other actions
to satisfy our obligations under our debt agreements, which may not be successful.

Our ability to make scheduled debt service payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial
condition and operating performance, which are subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to
certain financial, business, legislative, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. We may be unable to maintain
a level of cash flows from operating activities sufficient to permit us to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest
on our indebtedness.
If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations, we could face substantial
liquidity problems and could be forced to reduce or delay investments and capital expenditures, or to dispose of
material assets or operations, seek additional debt or equity capital or restructure or refinance our indebtedness. We
may not be able to affect any such alternative measures, if necessary, on commercially reasonable terms or at all and,
even if successful, those alternative actions may not allow us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. The
credit agreement governing the revolving credit facility and the indenture that governs the 6.25% Notes restricts our
ability to dispose of assets and use the proceeds from those dispositions and may also restrict our ability to raise debt
or equity capital to be used to repay other indebtedness when it becomes due. We may not be able to consummate
those dispositions or to obtain proceeds in an amount sufficient to meet any debt service obligations then due.
If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debt, we will be in default and, as a result:

•our debt holders could declare all outstanding principal and interest to be due and payable;

•the lenders under the revolving credit facility could terminate their commitments to loan money, and foreclose against
the assets securing their borrowings; and
•we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation.
Relative to current indebtedness levels, we may still be able to incur substantially more debt, including debt under our
revolving credit facility. This could further exacerbate the risks described above.
We have a Senior Credit Agreement that provides the Company with a revolving credit facility commitment up to
$200 million with borrowings limited to the lesser of (i) $200 million or (ii) a borrowing base determined by reference
to the trade receivables, inventories, and property, plant, and equipment of our significant domestic subsidiaries. We
had no borrowings during 2014, and as of December 31, 2014, we had $98 million of availability under our revolving
credit facility. Under the terms of our Senior Credit Agreement, we are required to repay all amounts outstanding
under the revolving credit facility by October 10, 2016. Our principal operating subsidiary, Gibraltar Steel
Corporation of New York, is also a borrower under the Senior Credit Agreement and the full amount of our
commitments under the revolving credit facility may be borrowed by that subsidiary.
We also have $210.0 million of 6.25% Notes that are due February 1, 2021.
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Our substantial degree of indebtedness could have other important consequences, including the following:

•it may limit our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing for working capital, capital expenditures, product
development, debt service requirements, acquisitions, and general corporate or other purposes;

•
a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations have been and are expected to be dedicated to the payment of
interest on our indebtedness and may not be available for other purposes, including our operations, capital
expenditures, and future business opportunities;

•certain of our borrowings, including borrowings under the Senior Credit Agreement, are at variable rates of interest,
exposing us to the risk of increased interest rates; and

• it may limit our ability to adjust to changing market conditions and place us at a competitive disadvantage
compared to our competitors which have less debt.

Restrictive covenants may adversely affect our operations.
The Senior Credit Agreement and the indenture governing our 6.25% Notes contain various covenants that limit our
ability to, among other things:

•incur additional debt or provide guarantees in respect of obligations of other persons;
•pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock;
•prepay, redeem, or repurchase debt;
•make loans, investments including acquisitions, and capital expenditures;

•incur debt that is senior to our 6.25% Notes but junior to our indebtedness under the Senior Credit Agreement and
other senior indebtedness;
•incur liens;
•receive distributions from our subsidiaries;
•sell assets and capital stock of our subsidiaries;
•consolidate or merge with or into, or sell substantially all of our assets to, another person; and
•enter into new lines of business.
In addition, the restrictive covenants in the Senior Credit Agreement include a single financial covenant that requires
the Company to maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.25 to 1.00. Our ability to meet the restrictive
covenants in the future can be affected by events beyond our control and we cannot assure you that we will meet this
financial ratio. A breach of any of these covenants would result in a default under the Senior Credit Agreement. Upon
the occurrence of an event of default under the Senior Credit Agreement, we would attempt to receive a waiver from
our lenders, which could result in us incurring additional financing fees that would be costly and adversely affect our
profitability and cash flows. If a waiver was not provided, the lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding
under such facility to be immediately due and payable and terminate all commitments to extend further credit. If such
event of default and election occurs, the lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement would be entitled to be paid
before current 6.25% Note holders receive any payment under our notes. In addition, if we were unable to repay those
amounts, the lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement could proceed against the collateral granted to them to secure
that indebtedness. We have pledged substantially all our assets as collateral under the Senior Credit Agreement. If the
lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement accelerate the repayment of borrowings, we cannot assure you that we will
have sufficient assets to repay debt outstanding under the Senior Credit Agreement and our other indebtedness,
including our 6.25% Notes, or borrow sufficient funds to refinance such indebtedness. An acceleration of the amounts
outstanding under the Senior Credit Agreement would result in an event of default under the 6.25% Notes which
would then entitle the holders thereof to accelerate and demand repayment of the 6.25% Notes as well. Even if we are
able to obtain new financing to pay the amounts due under the Senior Credit Agreement and 6.25% Notes, it may not
be on commercially reasonable terms, or terms that are acceptable to us. A breach of any of our covenants would have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and cash flow.
Variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk which could cause our debt service obligations to increase
significantly.
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were fully drawn or funded on December 31, 2014, as applicable, each 25 basis point change in interest rates would
result in a $0.4 million change in annual interest expense on debt outstanding under the Senior Credit Agreement.
New construction and home repair and remodeling markets account for a significant portion of our sales, and any
substantial reduction in demand from these activities is likely to adversely affect our profitability and cash flow.
The recent downturn in the economy, the disruption in capital and credit markets, declining real estate values, high
unemployment rates, and reduced consumer confidence and spending have caused significant reductions in demand
from our end markets in general and, in particular, the construction and home repair and remodeling markets. The
construction industry and home repair and remodeling markets in North America have shown signs of stabilizing from
further erosion. However, these markets are still depressed compared to historic norms, and we cannot predict the
strength, pace or sustainability of recovery in these markets.
Our largest customers are retail home improvement centers and wholesale distributors who largely sell into the
residential housing market. Our largest customer accounted for approximately 12% of our consolidated net sales
during 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
A loss of sales due to decreased demand from the construction market, the home repair and remodel market, any
significant customer in these markets, or a decrease in the prices that we can realize from sales of our products to
customers in these markets could adversely affect our profitability and cash flows. The end markets we serve have
been and are expected to continue to be cyclical, with product demand based on numerous factors such as seasonal
weather, availability of credit, interest rates, general economic conditions, consumer confidence, unemployment
levels, and other factors beyond our control. The economic conditions experienced in the earlier years of the recession
negatively affected all of these factors. If demand for the products we sell to these markets were to decline further, this
could negatively affect our sales, financial results, and cash flows in the future.

We rely on a few customers for a significant portion of our net sales. The loss of those customers would adversely
affect our business.
Some of our customers are material to our business and results of operations. Our ten largest customers accounted for
approximately 31%, 29%, and 30% of our net sales during 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. Our percentage of net
sales to our major customers may increase if we are successful in executing our strategy of broadening the range of
products we sell to existing customers. In such an event, or in the event of any consolidation of our customers, our net
sales may be increasingly sensitive to deterioration in the financial condition of, or other adverse developments with,
one or more of our largest customers. Similarly, many of our customers have also experienced and continue to
experience challenging financial conditions. The financial difficulties of certain customers and/or their failure to
obtain credit or otherwise improve their overall financial condition could result in numerous changes within the
markets we serve, reduced demand, decreased production, changes in product mix, unfavorable changes in the prices,
terms or conditions we are able to obtain and other changes that may result in decreased purchases from us and
otherwise negatively impact our business. These customers are also able to exert pricing and other influences on us,
requiring us to market, deliver, and promote our products in a manner that may be more costly to us. Moreover, we
generally do not have long-term contracts with our customers. As a result, although our customers periodically
provide indications of their product needs and purchases, they generally purchase our products on an order-by-order
basis, and the relationship, as well as particular orders, can be terminated at any time. The loss, bankruptcy, or
significant decrease in business from any of our major customers would have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, and cash flow. While we have taken and will continue to take steps intended to
mitigate the impact of financial difficulties and potential bankruptcy filings by our customers, these matters could
have a negative impact on our business.
Our business is highly competitive and increased competition could reduce our gross profit, net income, and cash
flow.
The principal markets that we serve are highly competitive. Competition is based primarily on quality, price, raw
material and inventory availability, and the ability to meet delivery schedules dictated by customers. We compete in
our principal markets with companies of various sizes, some of which have greater financial and other resources than
we do and some of which have better established brand names in the markets we serve. Increased competition could
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Our future operating results may be affected by fluctuations in raw material costs. We may not be able to pass on
increased raw material costs to our customers.
Our principal raw materials are commodity products consisting of steel, aluminum, and resins, which we purchase
from multiple primary suppliers. The commodity market as a whole is cyclical, and at times availability and pricing
can be volatile due to a number of factors beyond our control, including general economic conditions, domestic and
worldwide demand, labor costs, competition, import duties, tariffs, and currency exchange rates. This volatility can
significantly affect our raw material costs.
Global consolidation of the primary steel producers and increased demand from other nations such as China and India
continue to put pressure on market prices for steel and other commodities. Additionally, we maintain moderate to high
levels of inventories to accommodate the short lead times and just-in-time delivery requirements of our customers.
Accordingly, we purchase raw materials on a regular basis in an effort to maintain our inventory at levels that we
believe are sufficient to satisfy the anticipated needs of our customers based upon expected buying practices and
market conditions. In an environment of increasing raw material prices, competitive conditions will impact how much
of the steel price increases we can pass on to our customers. To the extent we are unable to pass on price increases in
our raw materials to our customers, the profitability of our business and resulting cash flows would be adversely
affected. In the event of rapidly decreasing raw material prices, we may be left to absorb the cost of higher cost
inventory as customers receive reduced pricing related to decreases in raw material costs. To the extent we are unable
to match our costs to purchase raw materials to prices given to our customers, the profitability of our business and
resulting cash flows could be adversely affected.
Lead time and the cost of our products could increase if we were to suddenly lose a few of our primary suppliers.
If, for any reason, our primary suppliers of steel, aluminum, resins, or other materials should curtail or discontinue
deliveries to us in quantities we need and at prices that are competitive, our business could suffer. Our top ten
suppliers accounted for 29% of our purchases during 2014. We could be significantly and adversely affected if
delivery were disrupted from a major supplier or several suppliers. In addition, we do not have long-term contracts
with any of our suppliers. If, in the future, we were unable to obtain sufficient amounts of the necessary metals at
competitive prices and on a timely basis from our traditional suppliers, we may not be able to obtain such metals from
alternative sources at competitive prices to meet our delivery schedules, which would have a material adverse effect
on our results, profitability, and cash flow.
Increases in energy and freight prices would increase our operating costs and we may be unable to pass all these
increases on to our customers in the form of higher prices for our products. We use energy to manufacture and
transport our products. In particular, our plants use considerable amounts of electricity and our freight expenses
include the cost of fuel to operate trucks. Our operating costs increase if energy costs rise. Although we do not believe
we have experienced materially higher energy costs as a result of new or more stringent environmental regulations of
our energy suppliers, such regulations could increase the cost of generating energy that is passed on to us. We do not
hedge our exposure to higher prices via energy futures contracts. During periods of higher freight and energy costs, we
may not be able to recover our operating cost increases through customer price increases without reducing demand for
our products. Increases in energy prices may reduce our profitability and cash flows if we are unable to pass all the
increases on to our customers through higher selling prices.

We may not be able to identify, manage, and integrate future acquisitions successfully and, if we are unable to do so,
we are unlikely to sustain growth in net sales or profitability and our ability to repay our outstanding indebtedness
may decline.
Historically, we have grown through a combination of internal growth plus external expansion through acquisitions
such as the acquisitions made during the last three years. Although we intend to actively pursue our growth strategy in
the future, we cannot provide any assurance that we will be able to identify appropriate acquisition candidates or, if
we do, that we will be able to negotiate successfully the terms of an acquisition, finance the acquisition, or integrate
the acquired business profitably into our existing operations. Integration of an acquired business could disrupt our
business by diverting management away from other day-to-day operations and could result in liabilities that were not
anticipated. Further, failure to integrate any acquisition successfully may cause significant operating inefficiencies and
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and neither debt nor equity financing may be available on satisfactory terms when required.
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We are subject to information system security risks and systems integration issues could disrupt our internal
operations.
We are dependent upon information technology and networks in connection with a variety of business activities,
including the distribution of information internally and also to our customers and suppliers. In addition, we collect and
store significant amounts of confidential data and information. This information technology and data is subject to
theft, damage, or interruption from a variety of sources, including but not limited to natural disasters, accidents, power
disruptions, telecommunications failures, acts of terrorism or war, malicious computer code, such as worms, viruses
and Trojan horses, security breaches, and defects in design. The implementation of new information technology
solutions could lead to interruptions of information flow internally and to our customers and suppliers while the
implementation project is being completed. We implemented new systems during the past three years at several
business units. Various measures have been taken to manage our risks related to information system and network
disruptions and to prevent attempts to gain unauthorized access through the internet to our information systems.
Nevertheless, such measures cannot provide absolute security due to employee error, malfeasance, faulty password
management, or other irregularities. A security breach, system failure, or failure to integrate legacy systems of
acquisitions or to implement new systems properly could negatively impact our operations and financial results. In
addition, cyber attacks could threaten, or even impair, the integrity and value of our trade secrets and other sensitive
intellectual property, as well as reveal personally identifiable information of our employees and customers.
Our principal stockholders have the ability to exert significant influence in matters requiring a stockholder vote and
could delay, deter, or prevent a change in control of the Company.
Approximately 5% of our outstanding common stock, including shares of common stock issuable under options and
similar compensatory instruments granted which are exercisable, or which vested or will vest within 60 days, are
owned by Brian J. Lipke, the Chairman of the Board of the Company, Eric R. Lipke, Neil E. Lipke, Meredith A.
Lipke, and the estate of Curtis W. Lipke, all of whom are siblings, and certain trusts for the benefit of each of them
and their families. As a result, the Lipke family has influence over all actions requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of our board of directors. In deciding how to vote on such matters, the Lipke family may be
influenced by interests that conflict with the interests of other shareholders.
We depend on our senior management team, and the unexpected loss of any member could adversely affect our
operations.
Our success is dependent on the management and leadership skills of our senior executive and divisional management
teams. The unexpected loss of any of these individuals, or an inability to attract and retain additional personnel could
prevent us from successfully executing our business strategy. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain our
existing senior management personnel or to attract additional qualified personnel when needed. We have not entered
into employment agreements with any of our senior management personnel other than Brian J. Lipke, our Executive
Chairman of the Board, and Frank G. Heard, President and Chief Executive Officer.

We could incur substantial costs in order to comply with, or to address any violations of, environmental laws.
Our operations and facilities are subject to a variety of federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations relating to
the protection of the environment and human health and safety. Compliance with these laws and regulations
sometimes involves substantial operating costs and capital expenditures, and any failure to maintain or achieve
compliance with these laws and regulations or with the permits required for our operations could result in fines and
civil or criminal sanctions, third-party claims for property damage or personal injury, cleanup costs or temporary or
permanent discontinuance of operations including claims arising from the businesses and facilities that we have sold.
We sometimes use hazardous and regulated substances such as petroleum products, hydraulic fluids, and solvents in
our operations and are responsible for the proper handling, storage and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes.
For certain businesses we have divested, we have provided limited indemnifications for environmental contamination
to the successor owners. We have also acquired and continue to acquire businesses and facilities to add to our
operations. While we sometimes receive indemnification for pre-existing environmental contamination, the party
providing the indemnification may not have sufficient resources to cover the cost of any required measures. Certain
facilities of ours have been in operation for many years and we may be liable for remediation of any contamination at
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our current or former facilities; or at off-site locations where wastes have been sent for disposal, regardless of fault or
whether we, our predecessors or others are responsible for such contamination. We have been responsible for
remediation of contamination at some of our locations and, while such costs have not been material to date, the cost of
remediation of any newly-discovered contamination cannot be quantified, and we cannot assure you that it will not
materially affect our profits or cash flows. Changes in environmental laws, regulations or enforcement policies,
including without limitation new or more stringent regulations affecting greenhouse gas emissions or use of fossil
fuels, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
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Labor disruptions at any of our major customers or at our own manufacturing facilities could adversely affect our
results of operations and cash flow.
Many of our customers have unionized workforces and could experience labor disruptions such as work stoppages,
slow-downs, and strikes. A labor disruption at one or more of our customers could interrupt production or sales by that
customer and cause the customer to halt or limit orders for our products and services. Any such reduction in the
demand for our products and services would adversely affect our net sales, results of operations, and cash flow.
In addition, approximately 12% of our own employees are represented by unions through various collective
bargaining agreements. Three of our CBAs expire and will be renegotiated in 2015. It is likely that our unionized
employees will seek an increase in wages and benefits at the expiration of these agreements, and we may be unable to
negotiate new agreements without labor disruption or on terms favorable to us. In addition, labor organizing activities
could occur at any of our facilities. If any labor disruption were to occur at our facilities, we could lose sales due to
interruptions in production and could incur additional costs, which would adversely affect our net sales, results of
operations, and cash flow.
Our operations are subject to seasonal fluctuations that may impact our cash flow.
Our net sales are generally lower in the first and fourth quarters primarily due to reduced activity in the building
industry due to inclement weather. In addition, quarterly results may be affected by the timing of shipments of large
customer orders. Therefore, our cash flow from operations may vary from quarter to quarter. If, as a result of any such
fluctuation, our quarterly cash flows were significantly reduced, we may not be able to service our indebtedness or
maintain covenant compliance. A default under any of our indebtedness could prevent us from borrowing additional
funds, limit our ability to pay interest or principal and allow our senior secured lenders to enforce their liens against
our assets securing our indebtedness to these senior secured lenders.
Economic, political, and other risks associated with foreign operations could adversely affect our financial results.
Although the large majority of our business activity takes place in the United States, we derive a portion of our
revenues and earnings from operations in other countries, and are subject to risks associated with doing business
internationally. Our sales originating outside the United States represented approximately 10% of our consolidated net
sales during the year ended December 31, 2014. We have facilities in Canada, England, and Germany. We believe that
our business activities outside of the United States involve a higher degree of risk than our domestic activities. The
risks of doing business in foreign countries include deterioration of foreign economic conditions, uncertainty over the
stability of the Eurozone, the potential for adverse changes in the local political climate, in diplomatic relations
between foreign countries and the United States or in governmental policies, laws or regulations, terrorist activity that
may cause social disruption, logistical and communications challenges, costs of complying with a variety of laws and
regulations, difficulty in staffing and managing geographically diverse operations, deterioration of foreign economic
conditions, currency rate fluctuations, foreign exchange restrictions, differing local business practices and cultural
considerations, restrictions on imports and exports or sources of supply, and changes in duties or taxes. Adverse
changes in any of these risks could adversely affect our net sales, results of operations, and cash flows.

Disruptions to our business or the business of our customers or suppliers could adversely impact our operations and
financial results.
Business disruptions, including increased costs for interruptions in the supply of energy or raw materials, resulting
from severe weather events such as hurricanes, floods, blizzards, and from casualty events, such as fires or material
equipment breakdown, from acts of terrorism, from epidemic or pandemic disease, or from other events such as
required maintenance shutdowns, could cause interruptions to our businesses as well as the operations of our
customers and suppliers. Such interruptions could have an adverse effect on our operations and financial results.
The nature of our business exposes us to product liability, product warranty and other claims and other legal
proceedings.
We are involved in product liability, product warranty and other claims relating to the products we manufacture and
distribute that, if adversely determined, could adversely affect our financial condition, operating results, and cash
flows. In addition, we are exposed to potential claims arising from parties, such as customers, for which we may be
contractually liable. Although we currently maintain what we believe to be suitable and adequate insurance in excess
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regardless of the ultimate outcome. Claims of this nature could also
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have a negative impact on customer confidence in our products and our Company. We cannot assure you that any
current or future claims will not adversely affect our financial condition, operating results, and cash flows.

If we are required to take additional non-cash impairment charges to earnings, such charges could be significant and
have a material impact on our results of operations.
We review the carrying value of long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. We also test goodwill in each of our reporting units and
intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or sooner at interim dates if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may exceed fair value. In recent years, we
have recorded significant non-cash impairment charges for goodwill and other intangible assets as a result of
reductions in the estimated fair values of certain businesses. Should the markets for our products deteriorate or should
we decide to invest capital differently than as expected, or should other cash flow assumptions change, it is possible
that we will be required to record additional noncash impairment charges to our earnings in the future, which could be
significant and have a material impact on our results of operations.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
Our principal executive office and headquarters is located in Buffalo, New York, in a leased facility. As of
December 31, 2014, we operated 35 facilities in the U.S., five in Canada, and two in Europe of which 27 were leased
and 15 were owned. We believe the facilities we operate and their equipment are effectively utilized, well maintained,
in good condition, and will be able to accommodate our capacity needs to meet current levels of demand. Our broad
North American and European network is well maintained and our sites are located to optimize customer service,
market requirements, distribution capability and freight costs. We continuously review our anticipated requirements
for facilities and, on the basis of that review, may from time to time acquire additional facilities and/or dispose of
existing facilities.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, the Company is named a defendant in legal actions arising out of the normal course of business.
The Company is not a party to any pending legal proceedings that management believes will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition. The Company is also not a party to any other
pending legal proceedings other than ordinary, routine litigation incidental to its business. The Company maintains
liability insurance against risks arising out of the normal course of business.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
As of December 31, 2014 there were 114 shareholders of record of the Company’s common stock. However, the
Company believes that it has a significantly higher number of shareholders because of the number of shares that are
held by nominees.
The Company’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market and quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “ROCK.” The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share for
the Company’s common stock for each quarter of 2014 and 2013 as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange.

2014 2013
High Low High Low

Fourth Quarter $16.26 $12.96 $18.59 $13.73
Third Quarter $16.32 $13.69 $16.55 $12.85
Second Quarter $18.96 $15.25 $19.05 $14.47
First Quarter $18.90 $17.43 $18.70 $15.05
The Company did not declare cash dividends during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Cash dividends
are declared at the discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Board of Directors determines to pay
dividends based upon such factors as the Company’s cash flow, financial condition, capital requirements, debt
covenant requirements, and other relevant conditions.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2014 concerning securities authorized for issuance
under the Company’s stock option plans:

Plan Category

Number of
Securities to be
Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding
Options

Weighted-
Average
Exercise Price
of Outstanding
Options

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under
Equity Compensation
Plans (1)

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security
Holders 569,319 $15.88 376,162

Total 569,319 $15.88 376,162

1

Consists of the Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the Plan). Note 11 of the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K provides additional
information regarding the Plan and securities issuable upon exercise of options. All currently effective equity
compensation plans have been approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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Performance Graph
The following information in this Item of the Annual Report on Form 10-K is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or
to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and
will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate such information into such a filing.
The performance graph shown below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s common
stock, based on the market price of the common stock, with the total return of the S&P SmallCap 600 Index and the
S&P SmallCap 600 Industrials Index for the five-year period ended December 31, 2014. The comparison of total
return assumes that a fixed investment of $100 was invested on December 31, 2009 in common stock and in each of
the foregoing indices and further assumes the reinvestment of dividends. The stock price performance shown on the
graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
(in thousands, except per share data)
The following selected historical consolidated financial data for each of the five years in the period ended
December 31, 2014 are derived from the Company’s audited financial statements as reclassified for discontinued
operations. The selected historical consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in Item 8 and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” set forth in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net sales $862,087 $827,567 $790,058 $766,607 $637,454
Intangible asset impairment $107,970 $23,160 $4,628 $— $76,964
(Loss) income from operations $(70,417 ) $21,480 $40,261 $36,158 $(72,642 )
Interest expense $14,421 $22,489 $18,582 $19,363 $19,714
(Loss) income before taxes $(84,750 ) $(832 ) $22,167 $16,885 $(92,279 )
(Benefit of) provision for income taxes $(2,958 ) $4,797 $9,517 $7,669 $(16,923 )
(Loss) income from continuing operations $(81,792 ) $(5,629 ) $12,650 $9,216 $(75,356 )
(Loss) income from continuing operations per
share – Basic $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41 $0.30 $(2.49 )

Weighted average shares outstanding – Basic 31,066 30,930 30,752 30,507 30,303
(Loss) income from continuing operations per
share – Diluted $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41 $0.30 $(2.49 )

Weighted average shares outstanding – Diluted 31,066 30,930 30,857 30,650 30,303
Current assets $360,431 $322,400 $267,238 $268,854 $242,377
Current liabilities $134,085 $119,913 $117,585 $128,424 $100,118
Total assets $814,160 $894,162 $883,674 $872,055 $810,890
Total debt $213,600 $214,007 $207,803 $207,163 $207,197
Shareholders’ equity $387,229 $471,749 $476,822 $459,936 $440,853
Capital expenditures $23,291 $14,940 $11,351 $11,552 $8,362
Depreciation $19,712 $20,478 $19,673 $19,872 $18,797
Amortization $5,720 $6,572 $6,671 $6,309 $5,167

20

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

33



Table of Contents

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be
read in conjunction with the Company’s risk factors and its consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
included in Item 1A and Item 8, respectively, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Certain information set forth
herein Item 7 constitutes “forward-looking statements” as that term is used in the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements are based, in whole or in part, on management’s beliefs, estimates,
assumptions, and currently available information. For a more detailed discussion of what constitutes a
forward-looking statement and of some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from such
forward-looking statements, please refer to the “Safe Harbor Statement” on page 2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Company Overview
Gibraltar is a leading manufacturer and distributor of products that provide structural, functional and architectural
enhancements for residential homes, low-rise retail, other commercial and professional buildings, industrial plants,
bridges and a wide-variety of other structures. These products include roof and foundation ventilation products for
industrial flooring, mail and package storage products, rain dispersion products and roof ventilation accessories,
fabricated bar grating, expanded and perforated metal, plus expansion joints and structural bearings for roadways and
bridges.
We serve customers primarily throughout North America and Europe, and, to a lesser extent, in Asia, Africa,
Australia, and Central and South America. Our customers include major home improvement retailers, wholesalers,
and industrial distributors and contractors. As of December 31, 2014, we operated 42 facilities in 22 states, Canada,
England, and Germany, which includes 32 manufacturing facilities and eight distribution centers, giving us a base of
operations to provide customer support, delivery, service and quality to a number of regional and national customers
and providing us with manufacturing and distribution efficiencies in North America, as well as a presence in the
European market.
The Company operates and reports its results in the following two operating segments, entitled “Residential Products”
and “Industrial and Infrastructure Products”.
Our Residential Products segment focuses on the new residential housing construction and residential repair and
remodeling activity. Its products are sold through major retail home centers, building material wholesalers, buying
groups, roofing distributors, and residential contractors.
Our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment focuses on a variety of markets including discrete and process
manufacturing, highway and bridge construction, energy and power generation. This segment’s products are
distributed through industrial, commercial and transportation contractors, industrial distributors and original
equipment manufacturers.
Our strategy is to position Gibraltar as a low-cost provider and market share leader in product areas that offer the
opportunity for sales growth and margin enhancement over the long-term. We focus on operational excellence
including lean initiatives throughout the Company to position Gibraltar as our customers’ low-cost provider of the
products we offer. We continuously seek to improve our on-time delivery, quality, and service to position Gibraltar as
a preferred supplier to our customers. We also strive to develop new products, enter new markets, expand market
share in the residential markets, and further penetrate domestic and international industrial and infrastructure markets
to strengthen our product leadership positions.
The end markets served by our business are subject to economic conditions that are influenced by but are not limited
to interest rates, commodity costs, demand for residential construction, and the level of non-residential construction
and infrastructure projects and demand for related repair and remodeling. End market conditions in 2014 overall were
equivalent to those in 2013, as the Company was still impacted by historically lower levels of activity in its core
markets. Although unevenly improving over the past few years, many economic indicators, such as residential
housing starts, non-residential construction starts, industrial shipments and home repair and remodeling activity,
continue to remain at levels well below long-term averages.
In response to these market conditions, we have restructured our operations, including the closing and consolidation of
facilities, resulting in reductions in employees and overhead costs, and managed the business to generate cash.
Investments in ERP systems have enabled us to react better to fluctuations in commodity costs and customer demand,
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013 
The following table sets forth selected results of operations data (in thousands) and its percentages of net sales for the
years ended December 31:

2014 2013
Net sales $862,087 100.0  % $827,567 100.0  %
Cost of sales 722,042 83.8  % 669,470 80.9  %
Gross profit 140,045 16.2  % 158,097 19.1  %
Selling, general, and administrative expense 102,492 11.9  % 113,457 13.7  %
Intangible asset impairment 107,970 12.5  % 23,160 2.8  %
(Loss) income from operations (70,417 ) (8.2 )% 21,480 2.6  %
Interest expense 14,421 1.6  % 22,489 2.7  %
Other income (88 ) —  % (177 ) —  %
Loss before taxes (84,750 ) (9.8 )% (832 ) (0.1 )%
(Benefit of) provision for income taxes (2,958 ) (0.3 )% 4,797 0.6  %
Loss from continuing operations (81,792 ) (9.5 )% (5,629 ) (0.7 )%
Loss from discontinued operations (32 ) —  % (4 ) —  %
Net loss $(81,824 ) (9.5 )% $(5,633 ) (0.7 )%
The following table sets forth the Company’s net sales by reportable segment for the years ended December 31 (in
thousands):

2014 2013 Total
Change

Net sales:
Residential Products $431,915 $394,071 $37,844
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 431,432 435,168 (3,736 )
Less Inter-Segment Sales (1,260 ) (1,672 ) 412

430,172 433,496 (3,324 )
Consolidated $862,087 $827,567 $34,520

Net sales increased by $34.5 million, or 4.2%, to $862.1 million for 2014 from net sales of $827.6 million for 2013.
The increase was the result of a 3.2% increase in volume, a 0.7% increase in pricing to customers, and 0.3% increase
due to sales generated by an acquisition completed in September 2013.
Net sales in our Residential Products segment increased 9.6% or $37.8 million to $431.9 million in 2014 compared to
$394.1 million in 2013. The increase from prior year was primarily the result of a 9.5% increase in volume along with
a 0.7% increase due to sales generated by an acquisition completed in 2013, slightly offset by a 0.5% decrease in
pricing to customers.  The most significant contributor to the increased sales was higher demand for our centralized
postal and parcel storage products. As postal authorities strive to convert door-to-door deliveries to centralized
deliveries, sales of our cluster unit mail boxes have benefited. This segment also benefited from modestly higher sales
of our roofing-related ventilation and rain dispersion products. The lower selling prices were primarily the result of
meeting selective competitive situations.
Net sales in our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment decreased 0.8% or $3.3 million to $430.2 million in
2014 compared to $433.5 million in 2013. The decrease was the result of a 2.5% decrease in volume partially offset
by a 1.7% increase in pricing to customers. Lower demand for our transportation infrastructure products including
components for bridges and elevated highways accounted for the volume decrease. Demand in this market is highly
dependent on governmental funding and transportation projects continue to be negatively impacted by the uncertainty
in government funding. The modest increase in pricing offered to customers was the result of covering raw material
inflation. 
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Despite the increase in consolidated net sales, our gross margin decreased to 16.2% for 2014 compared to 19.1% for
2013. Contributing to the lower gross margin were competitive pressures on pricing and increasing raw material costs.
We also incurred additional costs to increase our manufacturing capacity this year in our Residential Products
segment, and initial
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inefficiencies contributed to the margin compression. An unfavorable mix of products with lower margins as
compared to the prior year further contributed to the margin compression in our Industrial and Infrastructure Products
segment. These factors contributed to the overall margin decline, but were partially offset by cost reductions resulting
from staffing reductions in support functions implemented during the year.
Selling, general, and administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased by $11.0 million, or 9.7%, to $102.5 million for
2014 from $113.5 million for 2013. The $11.0 million decrease was largely the result of a $8.1 million decrease in
variable performance based compensation as compared to 2013, plus a $1.4 million reduction in contigent
consideration (or "earn-out") payable to the seller of a business acquired by the Company in 2013. The payable is
adjusted on a quarterly basis through the Company's Statement of Operations based on the acquired business's
projected EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization) through September 30, 2015.
SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased to 11.9% for 2014  compared to 13.7% for 2013.

During 2014, we recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $108.0 million. The charges stemmed from lower
estimated fair values of certain reporting units. The largest portion of the impairment was $92.5 million related to
intangibles in our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment. In 2013, we recognized intangible asset impairment
charges of $23.2 million due to a reduction in the estimated fair value primarily in our European-based business in our
Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment.

The following table sets forth the Company’s income from operations and income from operations as a percentage of
net sales by reportable segment for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

Change Due To

2014 2013 Total
Change

Intangible
Impairment Operations

Income (loss) from operations:
Residential Products $16,416 3.8  % $34,965 8.9  % $(18,549 ) $(14,435 ) $(4,114 )
Industrial and Infrastructure
Products (74,634 ) (17.3 )% 7,169 1.6  % (81,803 ) (70,375 ) (11,428 )

Unallocated Corporate Expenses (12,199 ) (1.4 )% (20,654 ) (2.5 )% 8,455 — 8,455
Consolidated (loss) income $(70,417 ) (8.2 )% $21,480 2.6  % $(91,897 ) $(84,810 ) $(7,087 )

2014 2013

Income
from
Operations

Goodwill
and
Intangible
Asset
Impairment

Income
from
Operations
before
Impairment

Income
from
Operations

Goodwill
and
Intangible
Asset
Impairment

Income
from
Operations
before
Impairment

Income (loss) from operations without
impairment charges:
Residential Products $16,416 $ 15,435 $ 31,851 $34,965 $ 1,000 $ 35,965
Industrial and Infrastructure Products (74,634 ) 92,535 17,901 7,169 22,160 29,329
Unallocated Corporate Expenses (12,199 ) — (12,199 ) (20,654 ) — (20,654 )
Consolidated (loss) income $(70,417 ) $ 107,970 $ 37,553 $21,480 $ 23,160 $ 44,640
Our Residential Products segment generated an operating margin of 3.8% in 2014 compared to an operating margin of
8.9% in 2013. Excluding the impairment charges of $15.4 million for 2014 and $1.0 million for 2013, the Residential
Products segment generated operating income of $31.9 million or 7.4% of sales in 2014 compared to $36.0 million or
9.1% of sales for 2013, a decrease of $4.1 million, or 11.4%. The decreased profitability was the result of additional
costs incurred to increase our manufacturing capacity this year which were not fully recovered by higher sales. This
segment also incurred higher raw material costs and a less favorable alignment of material costs to customer selling
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Our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment generated an operating margin of -17.3% during 2014 compared to
an operating margin of 1.6% during 2013. Excluding the 2014 and 2013 impairment charges of $92.5 million and
$22.2 million, respectively, the Industrial and Infrastructure segment generated operating income of $17.9 million or
4.2% of sales in 2014 compared to operating income of $29.3 million or 6.8% of sales in 2013. The $11.4 million
decrease was due to a less
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favorable product mix of lower shipments to the transportation infrastructure market as compared to 2013, plus a less
favorable alignment of material costs to customer selling prices and raw material cost inflation.
Corporate expenses decreased $8.5 million, or 40.9% for 2014 from $20.7 million for 2013 to $12.2 million for 2014
 The decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in variable performance based compensation expense of $6.7
million from prior year along with a a $1.4 million reduction in contingent consideration payable to the seller of assets
acquired by the Company in 2013.
Interest expense decreased $8.1 million to $14.4 million for 2014 from $22.5 million for 2013. The significant
decrease in expense resulted from the redemption of the $204.0 million of the 8% Notes in the first quarter of 2013. In
connection with this transaction, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $7.2 million, which included $3.7
million for the prepayment premium paid to holders of the 8% Notes, $2.2 million to write-off deferred financing fees
and $1.3 million for the unamortized original issue discount related to the 8% Notes. The $7.2 million charge was
partially offset by lower interest expense of approximately $0.4 million resulting from the lower coupon rate on the
$210.0 million 6.25% Notes issued in the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the 8% Notes. During 2014 and 2013,
no amounts were outstanding under our revolving credit facility.
We recognized a benefit from income taxes of $3.0 million for 2014, an effective tax rate of 3.5%, compared with a
provision for income taxes of $4.8 million, an effective rate of -576.6% for 2013. The difference between the
Company’s recorded benefit for 2014 and the benefit that would result from applying the U.S. statutory rate of 35% is
primarily attributable to the tax impact of the non-deductible goodwill and intangible asset impairments recognized in
2014. The effective tax rate for 2013 was primarily attributable to the tax impact of the non-deductible goodwill
impairment, state taxes, and the reversal of $2.3 million valuation allowance for certain state deferred tax assets.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012 
The following table sets forth selected results of operations data (in thousands) and its percentages of net sales for the
years ended December 31:

2013 2012
Net sales $827,567 100.0  % $790,058 100.0  %
Cost of sales 669,470 80.9  % 640,498 81.1  %
Gross profit 158,097 19.1  % 149,560 18.9  %
Selling, general, and administrative expense 113,457 13.7  % 104,671 13.2  %
Intangible asset impairment 23,160 2.8  % 4,628 0.6  %
Income from operations 21,480 2.6  % 40,261 5.1  %
Interest expense 22,489 2.7  % 18,582 2.4  %
Other income (177 ) —  % (488 ) (0.1 )%
(Loss) income before taxes (832 ) (0.1 )% 22,167 2.8  %
Provision for income taxes 4,797 0.6  % 9,517 1.2  %
(Loss) income from continuing operations (5,629 ) (0.7 )% 12,650 1.6  %
Loss from discontinued operations (4 ) —  % (5 ) —  %
Net (loss) income $(5,633 ) (0.7 )% $12,645 1.6  %

24

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

40



Table of Contents

The following table sets forth the Company’s net sales by reportable segment for the years ended December 31 (in
thousands):

Change Due To

2013 2012 Total
Change Acquisitions Operations

Net sales:
Residential Products $394,071 $375,105 $18,966 $10,514 $8,452
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 435,168 416,289 18,879 41,923 (23,044 )
Less Inter-Segment Sales (1,672 ) (1,336 ) (336 ) — (336 )

433,496 414,953 18,543 41,923 (23,380 )
Consolidated $827,567 $790,058 $37,509 $52,437 $(14,928 )
Net sales increased by $37.5 million, or 4.7%, to $827.6 million for 2013 from net sales of $790.1 million for 2012.
The increase from the prior year was primarily the result of $52.4 million or 6.6% of incremental sales generated by
four acquisitions, three of which were completed in the latter part of the fourth quarter of 2012 and one completed in
September 2013. Net sales from businesses operating in both periods decreased 1.9% or $14.9 million, the result of a
2.8% decrease in pricing to customers offset by a 0.9% increase in volume. The lower selling prices were primarily
the result of a decline in commodity costs for steel and meeting selective competitive situations.
Net sales in our Residential Products segment increased 5.1%, or $19.0 million to $394.1 million in 2013 compared to
$375.1 million in 2012. The increase from prior year was primarily the result of $10.5 million, or 2.8% of incremental
sales generated by two acquisitions, one completed in the latter part of the fourth quarter of 2012 and one completed
in September 2013. Net sales from businesses operating in both periods increased 2.3% or $8.5 million, the result of a
2.9% increase in volume partially offset by 0.7% decrease in pricing to customers. The increase was largely due to the
growing demand for our centralized mail and parcel storage solutions, designed for apartments and condominiums.
Net sales in our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment increased 4.5% or $18.5 million to $433.5 million in
2013 compared to $415.0 million in 2012. The increase from prior year was primarily the result of $41.9 million or
10.1% of incremental sales generated by two acquisitions which were completed in the latter part of the fourth quarter
of 2012. Net sales from businesses operating in both periods decreased 5.6% or $23.4 million, the result of a 4.6%
decrease in pricing to customers and a 0.9% decrease in volume. The lower selling prices were primarily the result of
a decline in commodity costs for steel and meeting selective competitive situations. While volumes increased in our
domestic industrial products, the increase was more than offset by declines in volume in our European markets, the
continued result of weak economic conditions in that region.
The increase in net sales was the principal factor that contributed to the increase in our gross margin to 19.1% for
2013 compared to 18.9% for 2012. Also contributing to the gross margin in 2013 was a lower amount of restructuring
and inventory charges in 2013 compared to 2012 of $1.2 million and $2.2 million, respectively. The 2012 gross
margin was impacted by costs to consolidate certain of our West Coast locations with similar products and market
characteristics and was largely completed by early 2013. Partially offsetting the favorable comparison on restructuring
costs was a less favorable alignment of material costs to customer selling prices for our industrial products in 2013,
the result of declining raw material costs in 2013 compared to 2012 and competitive pressures on pricing.
Selling, general, and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased by $8.8 million, or 8.4%, to $113.5 million for 2013
from $104.7 million for 2012. The $8.8 million increase included $6.2 million of SG&A expense from acquired
businesses and an increase in variable performance based compensation of $2.0 million. SG&A expenses as a
percentage of net sales increased to 13.7% for 2013 compared for 13.2% for 2012.
During the third quarter of 2013, we recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $23.2 million. The largest
portion of the impairment was $21.3 million related to intangibles in our European-based business for which estimated
fair values declined on lower projected cash flows. In 2012, due to changes in the estimated fair value of a certain
reporting unit resulting from a decrease in sales projections, along with continued under-performance in the operations
of that reporting unit, we recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $4.6 million.

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

41



25

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

42



Table of Contents

The following table sets forth the Company’s income from operations and income from operations as a percentage of
net sales by reportable segment for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

Change Due To

2013 2012 Total
Change

Intangible
Impairment Operations

Income (loss) from operations:
Residential Products $34,965 8.9  % $23,902 6.4  % $11,063 $3,628 $7,435
Industrial and Infrastructure
Products 7,169 1.6  % 34,634 8.3  % (27,465 ) (22,160 ) (5,305 )

Unallocated Corporate Expenses (20,654 ) (2.5 )% (18,275 ) (2.3 )% (2,379 ) — (2,379 )
Consolidated income $21,480 2.6  % $40,261 5.1  % $(18,781 ) $(18,532 ) $(249 )

2013 2012

Income
from
Operations

Goodwill
and
Intangible
Asset
Impairment

Income
from
Operations
before
Impairment

Income
from
Operations

Goodwill
and
Intangible
Asset
Impairment

Income
from
Operations
before
Impairment

Income (loss) from operations without
impairment charges:
Residential Products $34,965 $ 1,000 $ 35,965 $23,902 $ 4,628 $ 28,530
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 7,169 22,160 29,329 34,634 — 34,634
Unallocated Corporate Expenses (20,654 ) — (20,654 ) (18,275 ) — (18,275 )
Consolidated income $21,480 $ 23,160 $ 44,640 $40,261 $ 4,628 $ 44,889
Our Residential Products segment generated an operating margin of 8.9% during 2013 compared to a operating
margin of 6.4% during 2012. Excluding the impairment charges of $1.0 million for 2013 and $4.6 million for 2012,
the Residential Products segment generated operating income of $36.0 million or 9.1% of sales in 2013 compared to
$28.5 million or 7.6% of sales for 2012, an increase of $7.5 million, or 26.3%. While the segment had a modest
increase resulting from acquisitions, the majority of the increase resulted from improved performance from our West
Coast operations leading to lower restructuring and inventory charges in the 2013 period compared to the prior year.
The 2012 period included costs to consolidate certain of our West Coast locations with similar products and market
characteristics and was largely completed by early 2013.
Our Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment generated an operating margin of 1.6% during 2013 compared to
an operating margin of 8.3% during 2012. Excluding the impairment charges of $22.2 million, the Industrial and
Infrastructure segment generated operating income of $29.3 million or 6.8% of sales in 2013 compared to operating
income of $34.6 million or 8.3% of sales for 2012, a decrease of $5.3 million, or 15.3%. Despite an increase in
operating income due to acquisitions, this increase was more than offset by a less favorable alignment of material
costs to customer selling prices.
Corporate expenses increased $2.4 million, or 13.0% for 2013 from $18.3 million for 2012 to $20.7 million for 2013.
The increase was primarily the result of an increase in variable performance based compensation of $2.6 million due
to stronger performance of the Company's stock price which increased the value of deferred salary and previously
earned bonuses.

Interest expense increased $3.9 million, or 21.0%, to $22.5 million for 2013 from $18.6 million for 2012. The
significant increase in expense resulted from the redemption of the $204.0 million of the 8% Notes in the first quarter
of 2013. In connection with this transaction, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $7.2 million, which
included $3.7 million for the prepayment premium paid to holders of the 8% Notes, $2.2 million to write-off deferred
financing fees and $1.3 million for the unamortized original issue discount related to the 8% Notes. The $7.2 million
charge was partially offset by lower interest expense of approximately $3.4 million resulting from the lower coupon
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rate on the $210.0 million 6.25% Notes issued in the first quarter of 2013 as compared to the 8% Notes. During 2013
and 2012, no amounts were outstanding under our revolving credit facility.
We recognized a provision for income taxes of $4.8 million for 2013, an effective tax rate of -576.6%, compared with
a provision for income taxes of $9.5 million, an effective tax rate of 42.9% for 2012. The difference between the
Company's recorded charge for 2013 and the benefit that would result from applying the U.S. statutory rate of 35% is
primarily attributable to the tax impact of the non-deductible goodwill impairment recognized during the year and
state taxes. This impact is partially
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offset by the reversal of a $2.3 million valuation allowance for certain state deferred tax assets. The valuation reversal
includes operating losses that were no longer needed based on three years of cumulative profit and can be applied
toward current and future earnings. The effective tax rate for 2012 exceeded the U.S. federal statutory rate due to state
taxes and non-deductible permanent differences, including the effect of a non-deductible intangible asset impairment
charge.

Outlook

During 2014, our modest revenue growth was primarily the result of demand for postal products that supported
centralized mail delivery initiatives, partially offset set by lower sales of transportation infrastructure products.

We anticipate overall sales growth of low single digits in 2015 over 2014. We expect market conditions to improve
modestly for residential housing with industrial and transportation infrastructure markets being equivalent to 2014.
Headwinds for 2015 revenue growth are expected from: the effects of lower commodity costs on the selling prices of
certain industrial products as well as affecting order rates for new projects in oil and gas markets; a continuing weak
environment for broad-based price increases by which to offset inflationary costs; and the continuing uncertainty of
federal government funding beyond May 31, 2015 for U.S. transportation projects.

We anticipate increased profitability in 2015 compared to the prior year. Aided by modest revenue growth, 2015 profit
increases are expected from the incremental benefit of cost reduction actions completed in 2014 in overhead staffing,
sales channel adjustments, and a facility closure along with 2015 productivity initiatives and other actions.

With modest margin expansion on full year consolidated sales growth, we expect earnings per share for 2015 in the
range of $0.53 to $0.63. This compares to loss of $2.63 per share for 2014, or an adjusted earnings per share of $0.47,
which excludes the 2014 impairment loss of $3.09 per share.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
General
Our principal capital requirements are to fund our operations with working capital, the purchase of capital
improvements for our business and facilities, and to fund acquisitions. We will continue to invest in growth
opportunities as appropriate while continuing to focus on working capital efficiency and profit improvement
opportunities to minimize the cash invested to operate our business. We have successfully generated positive cash
flows from operating activities during the past three years which have funded our capital requirements and assisted in
the funding of our recent acquisitions as noted below in the “Cash Flows” section of Item 7 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. We generated positive operating cash flows during these periods despite the continued challenging
economic conditions our business faced. In the future, we expect to continue profitable growth and sustain strong
working capital management which will generate positive operating cash flow.
On October 11, 2011, we entered into the Senior Credit Agreement which includes a $200 million revolving credit
facility and provides Gibraltar with access to capital and improved financial flexibility. As of December 31, 2014, our
liquidity of $209.0 million consisted of $110.6 million of cash and $98.4 million of availability under our revolving
credit facility as compared to liquidity of $199.8 million as of December 31, 2013. We believe that availability of
funds under our Senior Credit Agreement together with the cash generated from operations should be sufficient to
provide the Company with the liquidity and capital resources necessary to support our principal capital requirements
during the next twelve months.
Our Senior Credit Agreement provides the Company with liquidity and capital resources for use by our U.S.
operations. Historically, our foreign operations have generated cash flow from operations sufficient to invest in
working capital and fund their capital improvements. As of December 31, 2014, our foreign subsidiaries held $19.1
million of cash. We believe cash held by our foreign subsidiaries provides our foreign operations with the necessary
liquidity to meet future obligations and allows the foreign business units to reinvest in their operations. These cash
resources could eventually be used to grow our business internationally through transactions similar to our 2012
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acquisition of the Western Canadian bar grating business. Repatriation of this cash for domestic purposes could result
in significant tax consequences.

Over the long-term, we expect that future obligations, including strategic business opportunities such as acquisitions,
may be financed through a number of sources, including internally available cash, availability under our revolving
credit facility, new debt financing, the issuance of equity securities, or any combination of the above. Potential
acquisitions are evaluated on the basis of our ability to enhance our existing products, operations, or capabilities, as
well as provide access to new products, markets, and customers and improve shareholder value. Our 2012 and 2013
acquisitions were funded by cash on hand.
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Cash Flows
The following table sets forth selected cash flow data for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities of continuing operations $32,583 $60,304
Investing activities of continuing operations (17,022 ) (7,866 )
Financing activities of continuing operations (322 ) (2,689 )
Discontinued operations (41 ) (9 )
Effect of exchange rate changes (1,627 ) (729 )
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $13,571 $49,011
During the year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by continuing operations totaled $32.6 million,
primarily driven by non-cash net charges totaling $129.6 million that included depreciation, amortization, deferred
income taxes, stock compensation, and an intangible asset impairment, partially offset by loss from continuing
operations of $81.8 million. Net cash provided by continuing operations for 2013 was $60.3 million and was primarily
driven by non-cash net charges totaling $63.5 million that included depreciation, amortization, deferred income taxes,
stock compensation, and an intangible asset impairment, partially offset by loss from continuing operations of $5.6
million.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company increased its investment in working capital and other net
assets from  December 31, 2013 resulting in $15.2 million of cash outflow. Cash flow invested in working capital and
other net assets included $14.3 million and $8.6 million increases in accounts receivable and inventory, respectively,
partially offset by a $11.2 million increase in accounts payable. The increase in accounts receivable was a result of
increased sales volume. Inventory and accounts payable increased due to increased manufacturing activity. The
increase in other current assets and other assets of $2.5 million was largely due to the timing of prepaid payments and
purchase of foreign currency options. During the year ended December 31, 2013, cash flow invested in working
capital and other net assets included $8.4 million increase in accrued liabilities partially offset by a $5.0 million
increase in inventory and $1.0 million increase in accounts receivable.
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations for 2014 of $17.0 million was primarily due to capital
expenditures of $23.3 million partially offset by $6.0 million received from the sale of two properties. Net cash used
in investing activities of continuing operations for 2013 of $7.9 million primarily consisted of $5.5 million for the
2013 acquisition of solar-powered ventilation assets and $14.9 million of capital expenditures, partially offset by the
sale of a property.
Net cash used in financing activities for 2014 of $0.3 million was the result of the purchase of treasury stock of $0.6
million and $0.4 million in long term debt payments, partially offset by the proceeds from the issuance of common
stock of $0.6 million. Net cash used in financing activities for 2013 of $2.7 million was primarily the result of
redemption of the $204.0 million 8% Notes along with the $3.7 million payment of the note redemption fees and $3.9
million in payments of deferred financing fees. These cash outflows were offset by proceeds from the issuance of the
$210.0 million 6.25% Notes.
Senior Credit Agreement and Senior Subordinated Notes
Borrowings under the Senior Credit Agreement are secured by the trade receivables, inventory, personal property and
equipment, and certain real property of the Company’s significant domestic subsidiaries. The Senior Credit Agreement
provides for a revolving credit facility and letters of credit in an aggregate amount that does not exceed the lesser of
(i) $200 million or (ii) a borrowing base determined by reference to the trade receivables, inventories, and property,
plant, and equipment of the Company’s significant domestic subsidiaries. The Senior Credit Agreement provides
Gibraltar with flexibility by allowing us to request additional financing from the lenders to increase the revolving
credit facility to $250 million. The Senior Credit Agreement also provided Gibraltar with a commitment to enter into a
term loan subject to conditions that subsequently the Company decided not to satisfy. The Senior Credit Agreement is
committed through October 10, 2016.

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

47



Borrowings under the Senior Credit Agreement bear interest at a variable interest rate based upon the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an additional margin of 2.0% to 2.5%, based on the amount of borrowings
available to Gibraltar. The Senior Credit Agreement also carries an annual facility fee of 0.375% on the undrawn
portion of the facility and fees on outstanding letters of credit which are payable quarterly.
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As of December 31, 2014, we had $98.4 million of availability under the Senior Credit Agreement and outstanding
letters of credit of $20.4 million. Only one financial covenant is contained within the Senior Credit Agreement, which
requires us to maintain a fixed charge ratio (as defined in the agreement) of 1.25 to 1.00 or higher on a trailing
four-quarter basis at the end of each quarter. As of December 31, 2014, we were in compliance with the minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio covenant. Management expects to be in compliance with the fixed coverage ratio covenant
throughout the next twelve months. No amounts were outstanding under our revolving credit facility during 2014 or
2013.
On January 31, 2013, the Company issued $210.0 million of 6.25% Senior Subordinated Notes (6.25% Notes) due
February 1, 2021. In connection with the issuance of the 6.25% Notes, on January 16, 2013 the Company initiated a
tender offer to purchase the outstanding $204.0 million of 8% Senior Subordinated Notes (8% Notes) due in 2015.
Simultaneously with the closing of the sale of the 6.25% Notes on January 31, 2013, the Company purchased the
tendered 8% Notes. The 8% Notes that were not tendered and purchased were called for redemption. In connection
with the purchase and subsequent redemption, the Company satisfied and discharged its obligations under the 8%
Notes as of January 31, 2013. The terms of the indenture for our 6.25% Notes do not fully prohibit us or our
subsidiaries from incurring additional debt. The provisions of the 6.25% Notes include, without limitation, restrictions
on indebtedness, liens, and distributions from restricted subsidiaries, asset sales, affiliate transactions, dividends, and
other restricted payments. Dividend payments are subject to annual limits of the greater of $0.25 per share or $25
million. The 6.25% Notes are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after
February 1, 2017, at the redemption price (as defined in the Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes Indenture). The
redemption prices will be 103.13%, and 101.56% of the principal amount thereof if the redemption occurs during the
12-month periods beginning February 1, of the years 2017 and 2018, respectively, and 100% of the principal amount
thereof on and after February 1, 2019, in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date.
In addition, prior to February 1, 2016, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the
Notes with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by the Company at a redemption price of 106.25% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. In the event of a Change in Control
(as defined in the Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes Indenture), each holder of the 6.25% Notes may require the
Company to repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s 6.25% Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the
principal amount thereof.
Each of our significant domestic subsidiaries has guaranteed the obligations under the Senior Credit Agreement. The
Senior Credit Agreement contains other provisions and events of default that are customary for similar agreements
and may limit our ability to take various actions. The Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes Indenture also contains
provisions that limit additional borrowings based on the Company’s consolidated coverage ratio.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company does not have any off balance sheet arrangements, other than operating leases, that have or are
reasonably likely to have a current or future material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition,
revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures, or capital resources.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes by category our Company’s expected future cash outflows associated with contractual
obligations in effect at December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligation Total Less than
One Year

One to Three
Years

Three to
Five Years

More Than
Five Years

Fixed rate debt $210,000 $— $— $— $210,000
Interest on fixed rate debt 79,844 13,125 26,250 26,250 14,219
Operating lease obligations 42,739 10,612 16,273 9,297 6,557
Pension and other post-retirement
payments 7,249 1,405 1,522 1,410 2,912

Management stock purchase plan 1 6,889 1,676 2,634 2,528 51
Variable rate debt (including interest) 2 3,623 405 808 806 1,604
Performance stock unit awards 3,877 2,411 1,466 — —
Other 1,742 878 593 271 —
Total $355,963 $30,512 $49,546 $40,562 $235,343

1

Includes amounts due to retired participants of the Management Stock Purchase Plan (MSPP). Excludes the future
payments due to active participants of the MSPP, which represents a liability of $9.6 million as of December 31,
2014. The timing of future payments to active participants cannot be accurately estimated as we are uncertain of
when active participants’ service to the Company will terminate.

2Calculated using the interest rate in effect of 0.14% at December 31, 2014.
Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make decisions based upon estimates, assumptions, and factors it considers
relevant to the circumstances. Such decisions include the selection of applicable principles and the use of judgment in
their application, the results of which could differ from those anticipated.
A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Our most critical accounting policies include:

•valuation of accounts receivable, which impacts selling, general, and administrative expense;
•valuation of inventory, which impacts cost of sales and gross margin;

•the allocation of the purchase price of acquisitions to the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities, which impacts
our depreciation and amortization costs;

•the assessment of recoverability of depreciable and amortizable long-lived assets, which impacts the impairment of
long-lived assets;

•the assessment of recoverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, which impacts the
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets;
•accounting for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities, which impact the provision for income taxes; and,
•accounting for derivatives and hedging activities, which impact other income (expense), other comprehensive income.
Management reviews these estimates, including the allowance for doubtful accounts and inventory reserves, on a
regular basis and makes adjustments based on historical experience, current conditions, and future expectations.
Management believes these estimates are reasonable, but actual results could differ from these estimates.

Valuation of Accounts Receivable
Our accounts receivable represent those amounts that have been billed to our customers but not yet collected. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, allowances for doubtful accounts of $4.3 million and $4.8 million were recorded, or
approximately 4% and 5% of gross accounts receivable for both periods, respectively. We record an allowance for
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accounts based on the portion of those accounts receivable that we believe are potentially uncollectible based on
various factors, including experience, creditworthiness of customers, and current market and economic conditions. If
the financial condition of customers were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required. Changes in judgments on these factors could impact the timing of costs
recognized.
Valuation of Inventories
We record our inventories at the lower of cost or market. We determine the cost basis of our inventory on a first-in,
first-out basis using a standard cost methodology that approximates actual cost. On a regular basis, we calculate an
estimated market value of our inventory, considered to be the prevailing selling price for the inventory less the cost to
complete and sell the product. We compare the current carrying value of our inventory to the estimated market value
to determine whether a reserve to value inventory at the lower of cost or market is necessary. We recorded
insignificant charges during the three year period ended December 31, 2014 to value our inventory at the lower of cost
or market.
We regularly review inventory on hand and record provisions for excess, obsolete, and slow-moving inventory based
on historical and current sales trends. We recorded reserves for excess, obsolete, and slow-moving inventory of $5.6
million at both December 31, 2014 and 2013, or approximately 4% and 5% of gross inventories for 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Changes in product demand and our customer base may affect the value of inventory on hand, which
may require higher provisions for obsolete inventory.
Accounting for Acquired Assets and Liabilities
When we acquire a business, we allocate the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
transaction at their respective estimated fair values. We record any premium over the fair value of net assets acquired
as goodwill. Significant judgment is necessary to determine the fair value of the purchase price. The allocation of the
purchase price involves judgments and estimates both in characterizing the assets and in determining their fair value.
The way we characterize the assets has important implications, as long-lived assets with definitive lives, for example,
are depreciated or amortized, whereas goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as explained below.
With respect to determining the fair value of the purchase price, the most subjective estimates involve valuations of
contingent consideration. We engage valuation specialists to assist in the determination of the fair value of contingent
consideration. Key assumptions used to value the contingent consideration include future projections and discount
rates.
With respect to determining the fair value of assets, the most subjective estimates involve valuations of long-lived
assets, such as property, plant, and equipment as well as identified intangible assets. We use all available information
to make these fair value determinations and engage independent valuation specialists to assist in the fair value
determination of the acquired long-lived assets. The fair values of long-lived assets are determined using valuation
techniques that use discounted cash flow methods, independent market appraisals, and other acceptable valuation
techniques.
Due to the subjectivity inherent in determining the fair value of long-lived assets and the significant number of
acquisitions we have completed, we believe the allocation of purchase price to acquired assets and liabilities is a
critical accounting policy.

Impairment of Depreciable and Amortizable Long-lived Assets
We test long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
those assets may not be recoverable and exceeds their fair value, or on an annual basis at minimum. During our annual
test, we perform a recoverability test by comparing the carrying amount of asset groups to future undiscounted cash
flows expected to result from the use of the assets. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which
the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value as determined by discounted cash flow method, an
independent market appraisal of the asset, or another acceptable valuation technique.
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In 2014, after completing the recoverability test, one of the Company's reporting unit's future undiscounted cash flows
was less than the carrying amount of its assets. Based on these results, we then conducted an analysis to measure the
amount of the impairment loss by valuing the long-lived asset groups of the entity in the following order:
•Receivables, inventory, and indefinite-lived intangibles
•Property, plant, and equipment; and definite-lived intangibles
•Goodwill
Upon calculating the fair value of the asset groups and comparing the fair value to the carrying value, the Company
recorded impairment charges of $804,000 for property, plant, and equipment; and definite-lived intangibles. After
taking the effects of these impairment charges into consideration, the Company determined that an impairment charge
of $5,603,000 against goodwill was also necessary.
As a result of restructuring activities incurred by the Company, a net recovery for property, plant, and equipment of
$0.5 million and charges of $1.6 million were recorded during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
Goodwill and Other Indefinite-lived Intangible Asset Impairment Testing
Testing Methodology
Our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset balances of $236.0 million and $42.7 million as of December 31,
2014, respectively, are subject to impairment testing. We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment on an annual basis as of October 31 and at interim dates when indicators of impairment are present.
Indicators of impairment could include a significant long-term adverse change in business climate, poor indicators of
operating performance, or a sale or disposition of a significant portion of a reporting unit. As a result of the October
31, 2014 test, the Company recognized intangible asset impairment charges of $108.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
We test goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level. We identify our reporting units by assessing whether the
components of our company constitute businesses for which discrete financial information is available and
management regularly reviews the operating results of those components. During 2014, we identified eleven reporting
units in total, of which nine units had goodwill at the beginning of the fiscal year.
The goodwill impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount
including goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, the implied fair
value of goodwill is compared to the carrying amount of goodwill. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill.
Step one of the impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount
including goodwill. The fair value of each reporting unit is determined using two valuation techniques: an income
approach and a market approach.
The income approach included a discounted cash flow model relying on significant assumptions consisting of revenue
growth rates and profit margins based on internal forecasts, terminal value, and the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) used to discount future cash flows. The WACC is calculated based upon the capital structure of eleven
market participants in the Company’s peer group.
The market approach consisted of applying the Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization
(EBITDA) multiple to the forecasted EBITDA to be generated in the next two years. The market approach also relied
on the same significant assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model, consisting of revenue growth rates and
profit margins based on internal forecasts and the EBITDA multiple selected from an analysis of peer companies.
Similar to the WACC analysis, we assessed the risk of each reporting unit achieving its forecasts with consideration
given to how each reporting unit has performed historically compared to forecasts.
Annual Impairment Testing
For the first nine months ended September 30, 2014, we concluded that no indicators of impairment existed at interim
dates and did not perform any interim impairment tests related to goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. The
Company performed its annual impairment test as of October 31, 2014 during which we tested goodwill and other
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment.
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The 2014 annual impairment test examined all eleven reporting units and used the two valuation technique
methodologies noted above (income and market approaches), and WACC calculation employed in prior years. The
following table summarizes the WACC and EBITDA multiple ranges used during the annual goodwill impairment test
performed during 2014:
Date of Impairment Test WACC
October 31, 2014 11.5% to 13.6%

EBITDA Multiple
October 31, 2014
2015 EBITDA forecast 7.7 to 8.45
2014 EBITDA forecast 10.3 to 11.05
Under the direction of Frank Heard, our new President and CEO, and in conjunction with our 2015 budgeting and
forecasting process, we reevaluated our revenue projections including a continued slower economic recovery, and
continued increased competition and pricing pressure. Of the eleven reporting units tested, we determined that five of
the reporting units had carrying values in excess of their fair values due to decreased revenue projections affected by,
but not limited to, slower economic conditions and increased competition. The Company initiated step two of the
goodwill impairment test for four of these reporting units, as one did not have goodwill as of our testing date. Step two
involved calculating the implied fair value of goodwill by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to the fair
value of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill, and comparing the implied fair value to the carrying amount of
goodwill. The step two analysis relied on a number of significant assumptions to determine the fair value of the
reporting units' net assets, including intangible assets. The fair value of intangible assets was determined using
standard valuation methodologies including the “relief-from-royalty” method and “excess earnings” method. These
methods primarily employed the use of future cash flows to determine the fair value of the applicable intangible
assets. The future cash flows used to determine the fair values of these intangible assets were derived from step one of
the goodwill impairment analysis as described above. The discount rate used in the valuation of intangible assets was
derived from the WACC used in step one of the goodwill impairment analysis. Based on the analysis described above,
we concluded the assumptions underlying step two of our impairment analysis were reasonable and appropriate.
While any individual assumption could differ from those that we used, we believe the overall fair values of our
reporting units are reasonable as the values are derived from a mix of reasonable assumptions. As a result of step two
of the goodwill impairment test, the Company estimated that the implied fair value of goodwill for all four reporting
units combined was less than its carrying value by $104,565,000, for which an impairment charge was recorded as of
December 31, 2014. The Company also recorded impairment charges against goodwill of $21,040,000 and $4,328,000
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Company will continue to monitor impairment indicators and financial results in future periods. If cash flows
change or if the market value of the Company’s stock decreases, there may be additional impairment charges.
Impairment charges could be based on factors such as the Company’s stock price, forecasted cash flows, assumptions
used, control premiums, or other variables.
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Analysis of Results
The following table sets forth the amount of goodwill allocated to each reporting unit tested for goodwill impairment
and the percentage by which the estimated fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its carrying value as of the
October 31, 2014 goodwill impairment test (in thousands):

Reporting
Unit

Goodwill Allocated
to Reporting Unit as
of January 1, 2014

Percentage By
Which Estimated
Fair Value Exceeds
Carrying Value (b)

Currency
Translation
Adjustment

Goodwill
Impairment
Charges(a)

Goodwill Allocated
To Reporting Unit
as of December 31,
2014

#1 $113,966 17 % $— $— $113,966
#2 46,198 N/A — (14,520 ) $31,678
#3 27,332 99 % — — $27,332
#4 93,854 N/A (566 ) (70,207 ) $23,081
#5 22,808 81 % — — $22,808
#6 8,256 67 % — — $8,256
#7 19,569 N/A — (14,235 ) $5,334
#8 3,588 242 % — — $3,588
#9 5,603 N/A — (5,603 ) $—
#10 — N/A — — $—
#11 — N/A — — $—
Total $341,174 $(566 ) $(104,565 ) $236,043

(a)Charge recorded during fourth quarter impairment test.

(b)Other than the reporting units where we took impairment charges, no reporting units were deemed “at risk” which we
define as a percentage of less the 10% by which estimated fair value exceeds carrying value.

The October 31, 2014 goodwill impairment test includes significant assumptions. We analyzed several
macroeconomic indicators that impact each reporting unit to provide a reasonable estimate of revenue growth in future
periods. We considered these forecasts in developing each reporting unit’s revenue growth rates over the next five
years depending on the level of correlation between macroeconomic factors and net sales for each reporting unit. We
concluded that this approach provided a reasonable estimate of long-term revenue growth and cash flows for each
reporting unit.
Operating margins used to estimate future cash flows are based on margins generated during the past several years,
adjusted for historical declines and slower recovery rates in both the residential housing markets and industrial and
infrastructure markets, consolidation of facilities, cost reductions and restructuring activities enabling the business
units to become more profitable as the economy continues to stabilize and recover. These actions led to increased
costs and lower operating margins in the short term. Based on our understanding of these reporting units and the
actions taken by management to restructure the businesses for improved growth and profitability, we concluded that
the long-term cash flows forecasted for all of the Company’s reporting units were reasonable.
In addition to revenue growth and operating margin forecasts, the discounted cash flow model used to estimate the fair
value of each reporting unit also uses assumptions for the amount of working capital needed to support each reporting
unit. We forecasted stable to modest improvement in working capital management for future periods at each reporting
unit based on past performance. Over the past years, we have improved and maintained our low levels of working
capital management through lean initiatives, efficiency improvements, and facility consolidations. Our days of
working capital ratio was 63 for the year ended December 31, 2014. We believe continued improvement in our ability
to manage working capital will allow us to increase the cash flow generated from each reporting unit.
The terminal value of each reporting unit was based on a projected terminal year of forecasted cash flows in our
discounted cash flow model. We made an assumption that cash flows would grow 3.0% each year thereafter in the
North American markets, and 2.0% each year thereafter in the European markets served by the Company, based on
our approximation of gross domestic product growth. This assumption was based on a third-party forecast of future

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

56



economic growth over the long-term.

34

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

57



Table of Contents

The discounted cash flow model uses the WACC to discount cash flows in the forecasted period and to discount the
terminal value to present value. To determine the WACC, we used a standard valuation method, the capital asset
pricing model, based on readily available and current market data of peer companies considered market participants.
Acknowledging the risk inherent in each reporting units’ ability to achieve long-term forecasted cash flows, in
applying the income approach we increased the WACC of each reporting unit based upon each reporting unit’s past
operating performance and their relative ability to achieve the forecasted cash flows.
As noted above, we used two commonly accepted valuation techniques to estimate a fair value for each reporting unit.
The estimated fair value for each reporting unit was calculated using a weighted average between the calculated
amounts determined under the income approach and the market approach. We weighted the income approach more
heavily (67%) as the technique uses a long-term approach that considers the expected operating profit of each
reporting unit during periods where macroeconomic indicators are nearer historical averages. We weighted the
remaining (33%) using the market approach which values the reporting units using forecasted 2014 and 2015
EBITDA values based on current economic conditions and takes a more short-term approach. We believe the income
approach considers the expected recovery in our end markets better than the market approach. Therefore, we
concluded that the income approach more accurately estimated the fair value of the reporting units as it considers
earnings potential during a longer term and does not use the short-term perspective used by the market approach.
Accordingly, we concluded that the market participants who execute transactions to sell or buy a business in the
current economic environment would place greater emphasis on the income approach.
The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated fair value and carrying value for each reporting unit as of
October 31, 2014 before impairment charges (in thousands):

Reporting Unit Estimated
Fair Value

Carrying
Value

#1 $113,017 $96,312
#2 70,646 86,541
#3 73,409 36,934
#4 135,415 188,163
#5 58,742 32,390
#6 99,197 59,584
#7 10,843 15,881
#8 24,313 7,104
#9 7,477 14,477
#10 18,869 14,882
#11 29,587 47,372
Corporate (101,728 ) (1,737 )
Total $539,787 $597,903

Net Debt $110,091
Equity (Net Book Value) 487,812
Total $597,903
The “Corporate” category includes unallocated corporate cash out flows. Unallocated corporate cash out flows include
executive compensation and other administrative costs. Gibraltar has grown substantially through acquisitions and our
strategy is to allow business unit management to operate the business units autonomous of corporate management. For
example, each business unit has its own accounting, marketing, purchasing, information technology, and executive
functions. As a result, we believe a market participant would not consider unallocated corporate cash flows when
valuing each reporting unit and these cash flows have been properly excluded from the valuation of the reporting
units.
Indefinite-Lived Intangibles
We test our intangible assets for impairment by comparing the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset,
determined using a discounted cash flow model, with its carrying amount. The assumptions used to determine the fair
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the fair values of our reporting units. An impairment loss would be recognized for the carrying amount in excess of its
fair value. The fair values of
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the impaired trademarks were determined using an income approach consisting of the relief-from-royalty method. The
Company recognized impairment charges related to trademark intangible assets during the annual test for 2014 of
$2,700,000. As a result of the interim test for 2013, and the annual test for 2012, the Company recognized impairment
charges of $2,454,000 and $300,000, respectively.
Accounting for Income Taxes and Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities, and any valuation allowances. Our effective tax rates differ from the statutory rate due to the impact of
permanent differences between income or loss reported for financial statement purposes and tax purposes, provisions
for uncertain tax positions, state taxes, and income generated by international operations. Our effective tax rate was
3.5% for 2014. The difference between the Company’s recorded benefit for 2014 and the benefit that would result from
applying the U.S. statutory rate of 35% is primarily attributable to the tax impact of the non-deductible goodwill and
intangible asset impairments recognized during the year. The effective tax rates were -576.6%, and 43.0% for the
years ended December 2013 and 2012, respectively. Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by
earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we have lower statutory rates and vice versa. Changes in the
valuation of our deferred tax assets or liabilities or changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof may also adversely
affect our future effective tax rate. In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns
by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes
resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon the differences between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when these differences reverse.
Valuation allowances are provided if based upon the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Regarding deferred income tax assets, we maintained a valuation allowance of $0.4 million and $0.3 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, due to uncertainties related to our ability to realize these assets, primarily
consisting of state net operating losses and other deferred tax assets. The valuation allowances are based on estimates
of taxable income in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate and the period over which our deferred tax assets
will be recoverable. If market conditions improve and future results of operations exceed our current expectations, our
existing tax valuation allowances may be adjusted, such as the $2.3 million benefit recognized in the fourth quarter of
2013. Alternatively, if market conditions deteriorate further or future operating results do not meet expectations,
future assessments may result in a determination that some or all of the deferred tax assets are not realizable. As a
result, we may need to establish additional tax valuation allowances for all or a portion of the gross deferred tax
assets, which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
It is our policy to classify estimated interest and penalties due to tax authorities as income tax. Insignificant amounts
of interest and penalties were recognized in the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012. Additionally, we classify tax credits as a reduction to income tax expense.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained on examination by tax authorities, based on the technical merits of each position. The tax
benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has
a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
the liability for uncertain income tax positions was $1.4 million and $1.7 million, respectively. Due to the high degree
of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future cash flows associated with these liabilities, we are unable to
make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period in which these liabilities might be paid.

Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

We record all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives
depends on whether we have elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting
and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting. Derivative
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instruments that hedge forecasted transactions or the variability of cash flows related to a recognized asset or liability
are designated as a cash flow hedge. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or
loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow
hedge. Although certain of our derivative financial instruments do not qualify or are not accounted for under hedge
accounting, we do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
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The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk is recorded as a component of equity and is subsequently reclassified into earnings and reported
in revenue in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. Any ineffective portion of the change
in fair value of the derivative is recognized directly into earnings in other (income) expense. Our policy is to
de-designate cash flow hedges at the time forecasted transactions are recognized as revenue on the statement of
operations and report subsequent changes in fair value through the other (income) expense line on our statement of
operations where the gain or loss due to movements in currency rates on the underlying asset or liability is revalued. If
it becomes probable that the originally forecasted transaction will not occur, the gain or loss related to the hedge
recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income is immediately recognized into other (income) expense.
Related Party Transactions
Prior to his retirement as of December 31, 2014, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, Gerald S. Lippes,
was a partner in a law firm that provided legal services to the Company. For the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013, and 2012, the Company incurred costs of $1.4 million, $2.0 million, and $1.5 million, respectively, for legal
services from this firm. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had $374,000 and $296,000 recorded in
accounts payable for amounts due to this law firm, respectively.
Effective September 30, 2013, Henning N. Kornbrekke, the former President and Chief Operating Officer, retired and
entered into a consulting agreement with the Company. Through this agreement, he served as a consultant to the
Company through December 2014 for a monetary fee of $10,000 per month.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-08, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic
205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360)". The amendments in this update affect the presentation on the
financial statements of assets which are disposed of or classified as held for sale. The amendments in Topic 205 and
360 are effective prospectively beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted, but only for
disposals, or classifications of assets held for sale, that have not been reported in financial statements previously
issued or available for issuance. The Company does not expect the adoption of Update 2014-08 to have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"
(Topic 606). The update clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a common standard for U.S.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and International Financial Reporting Standards. More specifically, the
core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The amendments in Topic 606 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. Early adoption is not
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard on revenue recognition and
its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-12, "Compensation - Stock Compensation" (Topic
718). The amendments in this update require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved
after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The amendments in Topic 718 are effective
either prospectively to all awards granted or modified after the effective date, or retrospectively to all awards with
performance targets that are outstanding as of the beginning of the earliest annual period presented in the financial
statements and all new or modified awards thereafter. This pronouncement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2015 and early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of Topic 718 to have
a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.

In November 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-16, "Derivatives and Hedging - Determining
Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to
Equity" (Topic 815). The amendments in this update state that an entity should determine the nature of the host

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

62
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embedded derivative feature that is being evaluated for separate accounting from the host contract. This
pronouncement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect the
adoption of Update 2014-16 to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.
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In November 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-17, "Business Combinations - Pushdown
Accounting" (Topic 805). The amendments in this update provide an acquired entity with an option to apply
pushdown accounting in its separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event in which an acquirer obtains
control of the acquired entity. The Company adopted the amendments in this update on its effective date of November
18, 2014. The Company does not expect the adoption of Update 2014-17 to have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial results.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to various market risk factors, including changes in
general economic conditions, competition, and raw materials pricing and availability. In addition, the Company is
exposed to other financial market risks, primarily related to its long-term debt and foreign operations.
Raw Material Pricing Risk
We are subject to market risk exposure related to volatility in the price of steel, aluminum and resins. A significant
amount of our cost of sales relates to material costs. Our business is heavily dependent on the price and supply of our
raw materials. Our various products are fabricated from steel, primarily hot-rolled and galvanized steel coils, plate and
bars, produced by steel mills. We have other lesser volume products that are fabricated from aluminum coils,
extrusions, and plastic resins. The commodity market, which includes the steel, aluminum, and resin industries, is
highly cyclical in nature, and commodity costs have been volatile in recent years, and may become more volatile in
the future. Commodity costs are influenced by numerous factors beyond our control, including general economic
conditions, the availability of raw materials, competition, labor costs, freight and transportation costs, production
costs, import duties and other trade restrictions.
The Company principally manages its exposures to the market fluctuations in the steel and resins industries through
management of its core business activities. Although we have the ability to purchase steel from a number of suppliers,
a production cutback by one or more of our current suppliers could create challenges in meeting delivery schedules to
our customers. The prices we offer to our customers are also impacted by changes in commodity costs. We manage
the alignment of the cost of our raw materials and prices offered to customers and attempt to pass changes to raw
material costs through to our customers. To improve our management of commodity costs, we attempt to maintain
lean inventory levels. Our investment in ERP systems was made to increase our effectiveness in this process.
We have not entered into long-term contracts for the purchase of raw materials and have not maintained inventory
levels in excess of our production requirements. However, from time to time, we may purchase raw materials in
advance of commodity cost increases.
We rely on major suppliers for our supply of raw materials. During 2014, we purchased our raw materials from
domestic and foreign suppliers in an effort to purchase the lowest cost material as possible.
We cannot accurately calculate the pre-tax impact a one percent change in the commodity costs would have on our
2014 operating results as the change in commodity costs would both impact the cost to purchase materials and the
selling prices we offer our customers. The impact to our operating results would significantly depend on the
competitive environment and the costs of other alternative building products, which could impact our ability to pass
commodity costs to our customers.
To manage the risk associated with the fluctuations in the price of aluminum, the Company employs a combination of
our normal operating activities, as discussed with regards to steel and resins above, and through the use of derivative
financial instruments pursuant to the Company’s hedging practices and policies. We intend that the financial impact of
these commodity hedging instruments primarily offset the corresponding changes in the fluctuations in the cost of
aluminum being hedged. The Company’s derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the
amount, timing, and duration of the Company’s known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash
payments principally related to the Company’s inventory and sales.

The Company entered into commodity options during 2014. The Company believes these instruments mitigate
exposure in aluminum prices. Derivative accounting guidance requires that derivative instruments be recognized as
either assets or liabilities at fair value. Gibraltar does not utilize the special election provided for under the accounting
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value changes.

Although the Company’s commodity options do not qualify or are not accounted for under hedge accounting, we do
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We monitor our derivative
positions against our commercial exposure.
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Interest Rate Risk
To manage interest rate risk, Gibraltar uses both fixed and variable interest rate debt. Our fixed rate debt consists of
the Company’s Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes and was the only significant debt that remains outstanding at year
end. We believe we limited our exposure to interest rate risk as a result of repaying substantially all variable rate debt
and the long-term nature of our fixed rate debt. However, the Company will continue to monitor changes in its debt
levels and access to capital ensuring interest rate risk is appropriately managed.
At December 31, 2014, our fixed rate debt consisted primarily of $210.0 million of our 6.25% Notes. The Company’s
$210.0 million of 6.25% Notes were issued in January 2013 and are due February 1, 2021.
Our variable rate debt consists primarily of the revolving credit facility under the Senior Credit Agreement, of which
no amounts are outstanding as of December 31, 2014, and other debt. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility
bear interest at a variable interest rate based upon the LIBOR plus an additional margin. A hypothetical 1% increase
or decrease in interest rates would have changed the 2014 interest expense by less than $0.1 million.
Foreign Exchange Risk
Gibraltar has foreign exchange risk due to our international operations, primarily in Canada and Europe, and through
sales and purchases from foreign customers and vendors. Changes in the values of currencies of foreign countries
affect our financial position and cash flows when translated into U.S. Dollars. The Company principally manages its
exposures to many of these foreign exchange rate risks solely through management of its core business activities. We
cannot accurately calculate the pre-tax impact that a 1% change in the exchange rates of foreign currencies would
have on our 2014 operating results as the changes in exchange rates would impact the cost of materials, the U.S dollar
revenue equivalents, and potentially the prices offered to our overseas customers.

The Company also manages the risks relating to currency fluctuations through the use of derivative financial
instruments pursuant to the Company’s hedging practices and policies. The Company uses foreign currency derivatives
including currency forward agreements and currency options to manage its exposure to fluctuations in the exchange
rates. Currency forward agreements involve fixing the exchange rates for delivery of a specified amount of foreign
currency on a specified date. The currency forward agreements are typically cash settled in U.S. dollars for their fair
value at or close to their settlement date. The Company also uses currency option contracts under which the Company
pays a premium for the right to sell a specified amount of a foreign currency prior to the maturity date of the option.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk is recorded as a component of equity and is subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period
that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the
derivative, as well as amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness, is recognized directly in earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gibraltar Industries, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Gibraltar Industries, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (1992 framework) and our report dated February 24, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Buffalo, New York
February 24, 2015

41

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

68



Table of Contents

GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Net sales $862,087 $827,567 $790,058
Cost of sales 722,042 669,470 640,498
Gross profit 140,045 158,097 149,560
Selling, general, and administrative expense 102,492 113,457 104,671
Intangible asset impairment 107,970 23,160 4,628
(Loss) income from operations (70,417 ) 21,480 40,261
Interest expense 14,421 22,489 18,582
Other income (88 ) (177 ) (488 )
(Loss) income before taxes (84,750 ) (832 ) 22,167
(Benefit of) provision for income taxes (2,958 ) 4,797 9,517
(Loss) income from continuing operations (81,792 ) (5,629 ) 12,650
Discontinued operations:
Loss before taxes (51 ) (7 ) (289 )
Benefit of income taxes (19 ) (3 ) (284 )
Loss from discontinued operations (32 ) (4 ) (5 )
Net (loss) income $(81,824 ) $(5,633 ) $12,645
Net earnings per share – Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41
Loss from discontinued operations — — —
Net (loss) income $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41
Weighted average shares outstanding – Basic 31,066 30,930 30,752
Net earnings per share – Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41
Loss from discontinued operations — — —
Net (loss) income $(2.63 ) $(0.18 ) $0.41
Weighted average shares outstanding – Diluted 31,066 30,930 30,857

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Net (loss) income $(81,824 ) $(5,633 ) $12,645
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (4,364 ) (2,108 ) 2,353
Adjustment to retirement benefit liability, net of tax (24 ) 53 (79 )
Adjustment to post-retirement healthcare benefit liability, net of tax (1,435 ) 45 (499 )
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, net of tax (143 ) — —
Other comprehensive (loss) income (5,966 ) (2,010 ) 1,775
Total comprehensive (loss) income $(87,790 ) $(7,643 ) $14,420

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $110,610 $97,039
Accounts receivable, net of reserve 101,141 90,082
Inventories 128,743 121,152
Other current assets 19,937 14,127
Total current assets 360,431 322,400
Property, plant, and equipment, net 129,575 131,752
Goodwill 236,044 341,174
Acquired intangibles 82,215 91,777
Other assets 5,895 7,059

$814,160 $894,162
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $81,246 $69,625
Accrued expenses 52,439 49,879
Current maturities of long-term debt 400 409
Total current liabilities 134,085 119,913
Long-term debt 213,200 213,598
Deferred income taxes 49,772 55,124
Other non-current liabilities 29,874 33,778
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares; none outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 50,000 shares; 31,342 and 31,131 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively 313 311

Additional paid-in capital 247,232 243,389
Retained earnings 154,625 236,449
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (9,551 ) (3,585 )
Cost of 429 and 395 common shares held in treasury in 2014 and 2013 (5,390 ) (4,815 )
Total shareholders’ equity 387,229 471,749

$814,160 $894,162

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net (loss) income $(81,824 ) $(5,633 ) $12,645
Loss from discontinued operations (32 ) (4 ) (5 )
(Loss) income from continuing operations (81,792 ) (5,629 ) 12,650
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 25,432 27,050 26,344
Intangible asset impairment 107,970 23,160 4,628
Loss on early note redemption — 7,166 —
Stock compensation expense 3,150 2,564 3,148
Non-cash charges to interest expense 1,012 1,006 1,547
(Benefit of) provision for deferred income taxes (6,640 ) (1,237 ) 994
Other non-cash adjustments (1,362 ) 3,800 4,176
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (excluding the effects of
acquisitions):
Accounts receivable (14,323 ) (1,020 ) 6,268
Inventories (8,599 ) (4,971 ) (1,022 )
Other current assets and other assets (2,456 ) (398 ) 2,409
Accounts payable 11,205 417 (3,770 )
Accrued expenses and other non-current liabilities (1,014 ) 8,396 (7,140 )
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 32,583 60,304 50,232
Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations (41 ) (9 ) (151 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 32,542 60,295 50,081
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (23,291 ) (14,940 ) (11,351 )
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (5,536 ) (45,071 )
Proceeds from other investment 277 — —
Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment 5,992 12,610 659
Net cash used in investing activities (17,022 ) (7,866 ) (55,763 )
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Long-term debt payments (407 ) (205,094 ) (473 )
Proceeds from long-term debt — 210,000 —
Payment of note redemption fees — (3,702 ) —
Payment of deferred financing fees (35 ) (3,899 ) (18 )
Purchase of treasury stock at market prices (575 ) (714 ) (970 )
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation 100 72 10
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 595 648 278
Net cash used in financing activities (322 ) (2,689 ) (1,173 )
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1,627 ) (729 ) 766
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,571 49,011 (6,089 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 97,039 48,028 54,117
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $110,610 $97,039 $48,028

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Treasury Stock Total
Shareholders’
EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at December 31,
2011 30,702 $307 $236,673 $229,437 $ (3,350 ) 281 $(3,131) $ 459,936

Net income — — — 12,645 — — — 12,645
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — 2,353 — — 2,353

Adjustment to retirement
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $40

— — — — (79 ) — — (79 )

Adjustment to
post-retirement healthcare
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $290

— — — — (499 ) — — (499 )

Stock compensation
expense — — 3,148 — — — — 3,148

Excess tax benefit from
stock compensation — — 10 — — — — 10

Net settlement of restricted
stock units 197 2 (2 ) — — 69 (970 ) (970 )

Issuance of restricted stock 11 — — — — — — —
Stock options exercised 28 — 278 — — — — 278
Balance at December 31,
2012 30,938 $309 $240,107 $242,082 $ (1,575 ) 350 $(4,101) $ 476,822

Net income — — — (5,633 ) — — — (5,633 )
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — (2,108 ) — — (2,108 )

Adjustment to retirement
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $30

— — — — 53 — — 53

Adjustment to
post-retirement healthcare
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $28

— — — — 45 — — 45

Stock compensation
expense — — 2,564 — — — — 2,564

Excess tax benefit from
stock compensation — — 72 — — — — 72

Net settlement of restricted
stock units 120 2 (2 ) — — 45 (714 ) (714 )

Issuance of restricted stock 13 — — — — — — —
Stock options exercised 60 — 648 — — — — 648
Balance at December 31,
2013 31,131 $311 $243,389 $236,449 $ (3,585 ) 395 $(4,815) $ 471,749
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Net loss — — — (81,824 ) — — — (81,824 )
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — — — (4,364 ) — — (4,364 )

Adjustment to retirement
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $9

— — — — (24 ) — — (24 )

Adjustment to
post-retirement healthcare
benefit liability, net of taxes
of $830

— — — — (1,435 ) — — (1,435 )

Unrealized loss on cash
flow hedges, net of tax of
$82

— — — — (143 ) — — (143 )

Stock compensation
expense — — 3,150 — — — — 3,150

Excess tax benefit from
stock compensation — — 100 — — — — 100

Net settlement of restricted
stock units 136 1 (1 ) — — 34 (575 ) (575 )

Issuance of restricted stock 22 — — — — — — —
Stock options exercised 53 1 594 — — — — 595
Balance at December 31,
2014 31,342 $313 $247,232 $154,625 $ (9,551 ) 429 $(5,390) $ 387,229

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when products are shipped or service is provided, the customer takes ownership and assumes
the risk of loss, collection of the corresponding receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
and the sales price is fixed or determinable. Sales returns, allowances, and customer incentives, including rebates, are
treated as reductions to sales and are provided for based on historical experience and current estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, checking accounts, and all highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less.
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are composed of trade receivables recorded at the invoiced amount, are expected to be collected
within one year, and do not bear interest. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the
probable amount of uncollectible accounts in the Company’s existing accounts receivable. The Company determines
the allowance based on a number of factors, including experience, credit worthiness of customers, and current market
and economic conditions. The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts on a regular basis. Account
balances are charged against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for
recovery is considered remote. The following table summarizes activity recorded within the allowance for doubtful
accounts balances for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance 4,774 4,481 4,614
Bad debt expense 1,095 910 920
Reserves from acquisitions — 183 189
Accounts written off (1,589 ) (800 ) (1,242 )
Ending balance $4,280 $4,774 $4,481
Concentrations of credit risk on accounts receivable are limited to those from significant customers that are believed
to be financially sound. The Company's two most significant customers are both within our Residential Products
segment, and include a home improvement retailer and a postal service. Accounts receivable as a percentage of
consolidated accounts receivable from the home improvement retailer and the postal service at December 31, 2014,
were 17.1% and 11.5%, respectively, and 11.5% and 3.0%, respectively, as of December 31, 2013.
Net sales as a percentage of consolidated net sales to the home improvement retailer were 11.5% and 12.3% for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Inventories

47

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

76



Table of Contents

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined using the first-in, first-out method, or market value. Shipping
and handling costs are recognized as a component of cost of sales. The Company records adjustments to reduce the
cost of inventory to its net realizable value, if required, at the business unit level for estimated excess, obsolete, and
slow-moving inventory. Factors influencing these adjustments include historical and current sales trends. Note 2
“Inventories” contains additional information on the Company’s inventory.
Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. Interest is capitalized in connection with construction of qualified assets. Expenditures that
extend the useful lives of assets are capitalized, while repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. The
estimated useful lives of land improvements, buildings, and building improvements are 15 to 40 years, while the
estimated useful lives for machinery and equipment are 3 to 20 years. Accelerated depreciation methods are used for
income tax purposes.
The table below sets forth the amount of interest capitalized and depreciation expense recognized during the years
ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Capitalized interest $420 $182 $376
Depreciation expense $19,712 $20,478 $19,673
Acquisition related assets and liabilities
Accounting for the acquisition of a business as a purchase transaction requires an allocation of the purchase price to
the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed in the transaction at their respective estimated fair values. The most
difficult estimations of individual fair values are those involving long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and
equipment and intangible assets. The Company uses all available information to make these fair value determinations
and, for major business acquisitions, engages independent valuation specialists to assist in the fair value determination
of the acquired long-lived assets.
Goodwill and other intangible assets
The Company tests goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level on an annual basis at October 31, or more
frequently if an event occurs, or circumstances change, that indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit could be
below its carrying amount. The reporting units are at the component level, or one level below the operating segment
level. Goodwill is assigned to each reporting unit as of the date the reporting unit is acquired and based upon the
expected synergies of the acquisition. The impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of a reporting unit,
determined using two valuation techniques, with its carrying amount including goodwill, and, if the carrying amount
of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, comparing the implied fair value of goodwill with its carrying amount. An
impairment loss would be recognized for the carrying amount of goodwill in excess of its implied fair value.
The Company also tests its indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis as of October 31, or
more frequently if an event occurs, or circumstances change, that indicate that the fair value of an indefinite-lived
intangible asset could be below its carrying amount. The impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible asset, determined using discounted cash flows on a relief-from-royalty basis, with its
carrying amount. An impairment loss would be recognized for the carrying amount in excess of its fair value.
Acquired identifiable intangible assets are recorded at estimated cost. Identifiable intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets, including acquired identifiable intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable. The Company uses
undiscounted cash flows to determine whether impairment exists and measures any impairment loss by approximating
fair value using acceptable valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and third-party appraisals.
The Company recognized impairment charges related to intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013. In addition, the Company recognized a number of impairment charges related to restructuring plans during
the three year period ended December 31, 2014 as described in Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred charges
Deferred charges associated with initial costs incurred to enter into new debt arrangements are included in other assets
and are amortized as a part of interest expense over the terms of the associated debt agreements. Portions of these
deferred financing charges were written off as a result of entering into amended and restated credit agreements and the
redemption and reissuance of bonds as discussed in Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements.

Advertising
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, advertising
costs were $4,000,000, $4,000,000 and $3,600,000, respectively.
Foreign currency transactions and translation
The assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing
during the period.
Income taxes
The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach. Under this approach, deferred
income taxes represent the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets when
uncertainty exists regarding their realization.
Equity-based compensation
The Company measures the cost of equity-based compensation based on grant date fair value and recognizes the cost
over the period in which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. Equity-based
compensation consists of grants of stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and performance stock units.
Equity-based compensation expense is included as a component of selling, general, and administrative expenses. The
Company’s equity-based compensation plans are discussed in more detail in Note 11 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Derivatives and hedging
The Company records all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of
derivatives depends on whether the Company has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply
hedge accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting.
Derivative instruments that hedge a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows related to a recognized asset
or liability are designated as a cash flow hedge. Hedge accounting generally provides matching the timing of gain or
loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge.
Although certain of the Company's derivative financial instruments do not qualify or are not accounted for under
hedge accounting, the Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges of
foreign exchange risk is recorded in other comprehensive income and is subsequently reclassified into earnings and
reported in revenue in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. Any ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of the derivative is recognized directly into earnings in other (income) expense. The Company's
policy is to de-designate cash flow hedges at the time forecasted transactions are recognized as assets or liabilities on
the balance sheet and report subsequent changes in fair value through the other (income) expense line on our statement
of operations where the gain or loss due to movements in currency rates on the underlying asset or liability is
revalued. If it becomes probable that the originally forecasted transaction will not occur, the gain or loss related to the
hedge recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income is immediately recognized into net income. 
Sale-Leaseback Transaction
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In June 2014, the Company determined that it no longer required full use of the available space on one of its real
estate properties. The Company entered into a transaction to sell the property to an independent third party for
$4,500,000, and lease-back a portion of it from the purchaser. The Company leased back approximately 50% of the
building under a five year operating lease agreement. In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, the Company accounted for the
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transaction as a sale-leaseback. The net present value of the Company's future minimum lease payments of $892,000
were greater than the gain on sale of $829,000. As such, the gain was deferred and is being amortized on a
straight-line basis over the five year life of the lease. The minimum lease payment in the first year is $202,000 and
escalates at 3% over the remaining four years. These amounts have been included in the future minimum lease
payments table in Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements.
Recent accounting pronouncements
In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-08, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic
205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360)". The amendments in this update affect the presentation on the
financial statements of assets which are disposed of or classified as held for sale. The amendments in Topic 205 and
360 are effective prospectively beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted, but only for
disposals, or classifications of assets held for sale, that have not been reported in financial statements previously
issued or available for issuance. The Company does not expect the adoption of Update 2014-08 to have a material
impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"
(Topic 606). The update clarifies the principles for recognizing revenue and develops a common standard for U.S.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and International Financial Reporting Standards. More specifically, the
core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The amendments in Topic 606 are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. Early adoption is not
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard on revenue recognition and
its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-12, "Compensation - Stock Compensation" (Topic
718). The amendments in this update require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved
after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The amendments in Topic 718 are effective
either prospectively to all awards granted or modified after the effective date, or retrospectively to all awards with
performance targets that are outstanding as of the beginning of the earliest annual period presented in the financial
statements and all new or modified awards thereafter. This pronouncement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2015 and early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of Topic 718 to have
a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.

In November 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-16, "Derivatives and Hedging - Determining
Whether the Host Contract in a Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to
Equity" (Topic 815). The amendments in this update state that an entity should determine the nature of the host
contract by considering the economic characteristics and risks of the entire hybrid financial instrument, including the
embedded derivative feature that is being evaluated for separate accounting from the host contract. This
pronouncement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect the
adoption of Update 2014-16 to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial results.

In November 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-17, "Business Combinations - Pushdown
Accounting" (Topic 805). The amendments in this update provide an acquired entity with an option to apply
pushdown accounting in its separate financial statements upon occurrence of an event in which an acquirer obtains
control of the acquired entity. The Company adopted the amendments in this update on its effective date of November
18, 2014. The Company does not expect the adoption of Update 2014-17 to have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial results.
2. INVENTORIES
Inventories at December 31 consisted of the following (in thousands):
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Raw material $58,665 $52,751
Work-in-process 12,841 11,100
Finished goods 57,237 57,301
Total inventories $128,743 $121,152
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The following table summarizes activity recorded within the reserve for excess, obsolete and slow moving inventory
for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance 5,570 4,907 4,146
Excess, obsolete and slow moving inventory expense 731 2,068 2,417
Reserves from acquisitions — 35 95
Scrapped inventory and other adjustments (726 ) (1,440 ) (1,751 )
Ending balance $5,575 $5,570 $4,907

3. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Components of property, plant, and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013
Land and land improvements $10,538 $11,939
Building and improvements 59,377 61,734
Machinery and equipment 219,408 203,052
Construction in progress 7,859 8,142
Property, plant, and equipment, gross 297,182 284,867
Less: accumulated depreciation (167,607 ) (153,115 )
Property, plant, and equipment, net $129,575 $131,752
4. ACQUISITIONS
2013 Acquisition
In September 2013, the Company purchased the assets of a domestic designer and distributor of solar-powered roof
and attic ventilation products. The results of this acquisition have been included in the Company’s consolidated
financial results since the date of acquisition (included in the Company’s Residential Products segment). The fair value
of the aggregate purchase consideration for the assets acquired was $7,454,000. As part of the purchase agreement, the
Company is required to pay additional consideration, or an earn-out provision, based on the acquired business’s
EBITDA through the last day of the twenty-fourth month following the closing date of the acquisition. The Company
expects to make payments of additional consideration through the end of 2015. The purchase agreement does not
provide for a limit of the amount of additional consideration. The Company recorded a payable of $2,322,000 to
reflect the fair value of the Company’s obligation at the date of the acquisition. Adjustments to this payable are and
will be reflected in the Company’s Statement of Operations. The fair value of the Company’s obligation was $328,000
and $1,864,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The change in fair value resulted in gains recorded to
SG&A of $1,611,000 and $236,000 during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company
also recorded $75,000 and $36,000 to interest expense for this obligation during the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively.
The purchase price for the acquisition was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their
respective fair values. The excess consideration was recorded as goodwill and totaled $2,466,000, all of which is
deductible for tax purposes. Goodwill represents future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that
could not be individually identified including growth opportunities and increased presence in the building products
markets.
The allocation of purchase consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed during 2013 are as follows (in
thousands):
Working capital $2,665
Property, plant, and equipment 153
Acquired intangible assets 2,170
Goodwill 2,466
Fair value of purchase consideration $7,454
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The intangible assets acquired in this acquisition consisted of the following (in thousands):

Fair Value Estimated
Useful Life

Trademarks $640 Indefinite
Technology 260 15 Years
Customer relationships 1,130 15 Years
Non-compete agreements 140 5 Years
Total $2,170

2012 Acquisitions
During 2012, Gibraltar purchased the assets of four businesses in separate transactions, three of which were acquired
in November and December 2012. The acquired product lines complement and expand the Company’s product
portfolio and customer base in four key U.S. and Canadian markets:

•Metal grating products for the oil sands region of Western Canada;
•Function-critical components for public infrastructure construction and maintenance;
•Perforated metal products for industrial applications; and
•Sun protection products for new residential construction and home remodeling.
The results of the above acquisitions have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial results since the
respective dates of acquisition (all of which were included in the Company’s Industrial and Infrastructure Products
segment with the exception of the assets acquired relating to sun protection products, which was included in the
Company’s Residential Products segment). The Company funded the investment from cash on hand including a
$146,000 payment during 2013 for working capital settlements for acquisitions closed in 2012. The purchase price for
each 2012 acquisition was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their respective fair
values. The excess consideration was recorded in goodwill and totaled $15,263,000, all of which is deductible for tax
purposes.
The allocation of purchase consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed during 2012 are as follows (in
thousands):
Working capital $8,868
Property, plant, and equipment 9,682
Intangible assets 10,183
Other liabilities (733 )
Goodwill 15,263
Fair value of purchase consideration $43,263
The acquired intangible assets consisted of the following for the four acquisitions completed during the year ended
December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value Estimated
Useful Life

Customer relationships $4,470 5-15 Years
Unpatented technology and patents 2,313 15 Years
Trademarks 2,130 Indefinite
Amortizable trademarks 800 5 Years
Non-compete agreements 340 5-10 Years
Backlog 130 0.5 years
Total $10,183
The 2012 and 2013 acquisitions were financed through cash on hand. The Company incurred certain
acquisition-related costs composed of legal and consulting fees, and these costs were recognized as a component of
selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations. The Company also
recognized costs related to the sale of inventory at fair value as a result of allocating the purchase price of recent
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All acquisition related costs (including the gains recognized as a result of the change in fair value of the earn-out
obligation) consisted of the following for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Selling, general and administrative costs $(1,594 ) (34 ) 456
Cost of sales 206 685 244
Total acquisition related costs $(1,388 ) 651 700

5. GOODWILL AND RELATED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

Residential
Products

Industrial and
Infrastructure
Products

Total

Balance at December 31, 2012 $193,043 $166,820 $359,863
Acquired goodwill 2,467 — 2,467
Adjustments to prior year acquisitions 10 242 252
Impairment — (21,040 ) (21,040 )
Foreign currency translation $— $(368 ) (368 )
Balance at December 31, 2013 $195,520 $145,654 $341,174
Impairment (14,235 ) (90,330 ) (104,565 )
Foreign currency translation — (565 ) (565 )
Balance at December 31, 2014 $181,285 $54,759 $236,044
Goodwill is recognized net of accumulated impairment losses of $255,530,000 and $150,965,000 as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.
Annual Impairment Testing
The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test as of October 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012. During 2014
and 2012, the Company incurred impairment charges as a result of the October 31 annual tests. The impairment
charges recognized in 2013 resulted from the interim test performed during the third quarter. No additional
impairment charges were incurred as of the annual test in 2013.
During the October 31, 2014 impairment test, the Company examined all eleven reporting units identified for review.
Step one of the impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount
including goodwill. The fair value of each reporting unit was determined using two valuation techniques: an income
approach and a market approach. Each valuation approach relies on significant assumptions including a weighted
average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC is calculated based upon the capital structure of market participants in
the Company’s peer group. Other assumptions used to calculate fair value for each reporting unit include projected
revenue growth, forecasted cash flows, and earnings multiples based on the market value of the Company and market
participants within its peer group.
The following table summarizes the WACC calculation ranges used during the annual goodwill impairment tests
performed during 2014 and 2013:
Date of Impairment Test WACC
October 31, 2014 12.9% to 13.6%
October 31, 2013 11.1% to 12.7%
During our 2014 and 2012 annual goodwill impairment tests, we identified reporting units with carrying values in
excess of fair value due to decreased revenue projections. Therefore, the Company initiated step two of the goodwill
impairment test which
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involved calculating the implied fair value of goodwill by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to the fair
value of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill, calculating an implied fair value of goodwill, and comparing the
implied fair value to the carrying amount of goodwill. As a result of step two of the annual goodwill impairment test,
the Company estimated that the implied fair value of goodwill for the reporting units was less than their carrying
values by $104,565,000 and $4,328,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2012, respectively, which have
been recorded as impairment charges.
Interim Impairment Testing
We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis as of October 31 and at
interim dates when indicators of impairment are present. During the third quarter of 2013, we significantly revised our
forecast to reflect lower revenue and operating margin expectations for the Company in 2013. As a result, we
concluded there was an indicator of impairment requiring an interim impairment test for four of our reporting units,
two within the Residential Products segment and two within the Industrial and Infrastructure Products segment. In
2014 and 2012, no indicators of impairment were identified as of interim dates; therefore, no interim tests were
performed.

The 2013 interim impairment test used similar valuation methodology as used during the annual tests (income and
market approaches), and WACC calculation employed in the interim test. The Company based the WACC on similar
market participants used in the interim test. Other assumptions used in the multiples approach such as projected
revenue growth and forecasted cash flows for the Company’s reporting units were also similar to those used during the
interim test. A third party projection of peer companies’ earnings multiples, projected revenue growth, and forecasted
cash flows were obtained for the analysis as well.
Of the four reporting units identified during the 2013 interim test, one of the reporting units in the Industrial and
Infrastructure Products segment, and the Company’s sole business in Europe, had a carrying value in excess of the fair
value due to decreased revenue projections, affected by recessionary economic conditions. Therefore, the Company
initiated step two of the goodwill impairment test which involved calculating the implied fair value of goodwill by
allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to the fair value of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill,
calculating an implied fair value of goodwill, and comparing the implied fair value to the carrying amount of
goodwill. As a result of step two of the goodwill impairment test, the Company estimated that the implied fair value of
goodwill for the reporting unit was less than its carrying value by $21,040,000, for which an impairment charge was
recorded as of September 30, 2013.
Acquired Intangible Assets
Acquired intangible assets consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Estimated
Useful Life

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks $42,720 $— $45,724 $— Indefinite
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks 3,886 1,827 3,989 1,420 2 to 15 Years
Unpatented technology 24,527 8,768 24,690 6,980 5 to 20 Years
Customer relationships 52,974 31,554 54,171 28,926 5 to 16 Years
Non-compete agreements 1,807 1,550 1,937 1,408 4 to 10 Years
Backlog 1,330 1,330 1,330 1,330 1 to 2 Years

84,524 45,029 86,117 40,064
Total acquired intangible assets $127,244 $45,029 $131,841 $40,064
The Company recognized impairment charges related to indefinite lived trademark intangible assets as well as for
other definite lived intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2014. Impairment charges were also recognized
for indefinite lived trademark intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. The impairment
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relief-from-royalty method. The impairment charges related to the definite-lived intangibles were recognized as a
result of the estimated future discounted cash flows of the asset
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being less than its carrying value. The fair value of the impaired definite-lived intangibles was determined using an
income approach consisting of either the relief-from-royalty method or the excess earnings method. In addition, the
Company recognized amortization expense related to the acquired intangible assets.
The following table summarizes the impairment charges for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Residential Products $1,200 $1,454 $300
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 2,205 1,000 —
Impairment charges $3,405 $2,454 $300
The following table summarizes amortization expense for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Amortization expense $5,720 $6,572 $6,671
Amortization expense related to acquired intangible assets for the next five years ended December 31 is estimated as
follows (in thousands):
2015 $5,488
2016 $5,154
2017 $4,793
2018 $4,231
2019 $3,561

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses at December 31 consist of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013
Compensation $18,490 $18,019
Customer rebates 9,639 8,473
Insurance 9,041 8,403
Interest and taxes 6,989 7,410
Other 8,280 7,574
Total accrued expenses $52,439 $49,879
Accrued expenses for insurance are primarily for general liability, workers’ compensation and employee healthcare
policies for which the Company is self-insured up to certain per-occurrence and aggregate limits. The amounts
accrued represent our best estimates of the probable amount of claims to be paid. Differences between the amounts
accrued and the amount that may be reasonably possible of payment are not material.
7. DEBT
Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the following (in thousands): 

2014 2013
Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes $210,000 $210,000
Other debt 3,600 4,007
Total debt 213,600 214,007
Less current maturities 400 409
Total long-term debt $213,200 $213,598
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Borrowings under the Senior Credit Agreement are secured by the trade receivables, inventory, personal property and
equipment, and certain real property of the Company’s significant domestic subsidiaries. The Senior Credit Agreement
provides for a revolving credit facility and letters of credit in an aggregate amount that does not exceed the lesser of
(i) $200 million or (ii) a borrowing base determined by reference to the trade receivable, inventories, and property,
plant, and equipment of the Company’s significant domestic subsidiaries. The Company can request additional
financing from the banks to increase the revolving credit facility to $250 million under the terms of the Senior Credit
Agreement.
The terms of the Senior Credit Agreement provide that the revolving credit facility will terminate on October 10,
2016. Interest rates on the revolving credit facility are based on the London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus an
additional margin of 2.0% to 2.5%. In addition, the revolving credit facility is subject to an annual commitment fee
calculated as 0.375% of the daily average undrawn balance.
Standby letters of credit of $20,377,000 have been issued under the Senior Credit Agreement to third parties on behalf
of the Company as of December 31, 2014. These letters of credit reduce the amount otherwise available under the
revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had $98,350,000 of availability under the revolving
credit facility. No borrowings were outstanding under the revolving credit facility at December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.
On a trailing four-quarter basis, the Senior Credit Agreement includes a single financial covenant that requires the
Company to maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.25 to 1.00 at the end of each quarter. As of
December 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with this financial covenant. The Senior Credit Agreement
contains other provisions and events of default that are customary for similar agreements and may limit the Company’s
ability to take various actions.
On January 31, 2013, the Company issued $210 million of 6.25% Senior Subordinated Notes (6.25% Notes) due
February 1, 2021. In connection with the issuance of the 6.25% Notes, the Company initiated a tender offer for the
purchase of the outstanding $204 million of 8% Senior Subordinated Notes (8% Notes). Simultaneously with the
closing of the sale of the 6.25% Notes, the Company purchased tendered notes or called for redemption of all of the
remaining 8% Notes that were not purchased. In connection with the redemption and tender offer, the Company
satisfied and discharged its obligations under the 8% Notes during the first quarter of 2013. The Company recorded a
charge of approximately $7,166,000 in the first quarter of 2013, including $3,702,000 for the prepayment premium
paid to holders of the 8% Notes, $2,199,000 to write-off deferred financing fees and $1,265,000 for the unamortized
original issue discount related to the 8% Notes. In connection with the issuance of the 6.25% Notes, the Company
paid $3,755,000 in placement and other fees which are recorded as deferred financing costs and included in other
assets.

The provisions of the 6.25% Notes include, without limitation, restrictions on indebtedness, liens, and distributions
from restricted subsidiaries, asset sales, affiliate transactions, dividends, and other restricted payments. Dividend
payments are subject to annual limits of the greater of $0.25 per share or $25 million. The 6.25% Notes are
redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after February 1, 2017, at the
redemption price (as defined in the Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes Indenture). The redemption prices are 103.13%,
and 101.56% of the principal amount thereof if the redemption occurs during the 12-month periods beginning
February 1, of the years 2017 and 2018, respectively, and 100% of the principal amount thereof on and after
February 1, 2019, in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date. In addition, prior to
February 1, 2016, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes with the net
cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by the Company at a redemption price of 106.25% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. In the event of a Change in Control, each holder of
the 6.25% Notes may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of such holder’s 6.25% Notes at a purchase
price equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof.
The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):
2015 $400
2016 $400
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2017 $400
2018 $400
2019 $400
Thereafter $211,600
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Total cash paid for interest in the years ended December 31 was (in thousands):
2014 2013 2012

Cash paid for interest $13,864 $24,880 $17,189

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
Pension
The Company has an unfunded supplemental pension plan which provides defined pension benefits to certain salaried
employees upon retirement. Benefits under the plan are based on the salaries of individual plan participants in the year
they were admitted into the plan. The plan has been frozen and no additional participants will be added to the plan in
the future.
The following table presents the changes in the plan’s projected benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded
status for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation at January 1 $2,179 $2,478 $2,653
Service cost — — —
Interest cost 88 80 110
Actuarial (gains) losses 9 (58 ) 50
Benefits paid (315 ) (321 ) (335 )
Projected benefit obligation at December 31 1,961 2,179 2,478
Fair value of plan assets — — —
Under funded status (1,961 ) (2,179 ) (2,478 )
Unamortized prior service cost 24 39 53
Unrecognized actuarial gain (179 ) (188 ) (130 )
Net amount recognized $(2,116 ) $(2,328 ) $(2,555 )
Amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements consisted of (in thousands):
Accrued pension liability:
Current portion $(395 ) $(415 ) $(402 )
Long term portion (1,566 ) (1,764 ) (2,076 )
Pre-tax accumulated other comprehensive income – retirement benefit
liability adjustment (155 ) (149 ) (77 )

Net amount recognized $(2,116 ) $(2,328 ) $(2,555 )
The plan’s accumulated benefit obligation equaled the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012. The measurement date used to determine pension benefit measures was December 31.
Components of net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Interest cost 88 80 110
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 15 14 14
Net periodic pension cost $103 $94 $124
Assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligation:
Discount rate 3.74 % 4.45 % 3.50 %
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Expected benefit payments from the plan for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in thousands):
2015 $395
2016 $372
2017 $360
2018 $327
2019 $228
Years 2020 - 2024 $537

Foreign Pension
The Company has another unfunded supplemental pension plan at one of our European subsidiaries which provides
defined pension benefits to certain employees upon retirement. The plan has been frozen and no additional
participants will be added to the plan in the future. The projected benefit obligation at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is
$410,000 and $441,000, respectively. A pre-tax accumulated other comprehensive loss retirement benefit liability
adjustment of $113,000 and $73,000 has been recognized in 2014 and 2013, respectively, in the Company’s financial
statements, for a net liability of $297,000 and $368,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
401(k)
Employees of all U.S. subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the Company’s 401(k) Plan.
Multiemployer Pension Plans
In addition, the Company contributes to a number of multiemployer defined benefit pension plans under the terms of
collective-bargaining agreements that cover union-represented employees. The risks of participating in these
multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans in the following aspects:

a)Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of
other participating employers.

b)If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the
remaining participating employers.

c)If the Company chooses to stop participating in some of the multiemployer plans, the Company may be required to
pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.

The Company’s participation in these plans for the year ended December 31, 2014 is outlined in the table below. The
“EIN/ Pension Plan Number” column provides the Employee Identification Number (EIN) and three-digit plan number,
if applicable. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Protection Act (PPA) zone status available in 2014 and
2013 is for the plan’s year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The zone status is based on information
that the Company received from the plans and is certified by the plans’ actuaries. Among other factors, plans in the red
zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80% funded, and plans in the green
zone are at least 80% funded.

EIN/ Pension PPA Zone Status Surcharge
Pension Fund Plan Number 2013 2012 Imposed
National Integrated Group Pension Plan 22-6190618-001 Red Red Yes
Sheet Metal Workers’ National Pension Plan 52-6112463-001 Red Red Yes
Sheet Metal Workers’ Pension Plan of Northern
California 51-6115939-001 Red Red No

At December 31, 2014, the Company employed 2,416 people, of which approximately 12% were represented by
unions through various collective bargaining agreements (CBAs). Three of our CBAs expire and will be renegotiated
in 2015. The multiemployer pension plans’ collective bargaining agreements expire April 15, 2015, April 30, 2015,
and June 5, 2015, respectively. All of the funds have rehabilitation plans in place. Each plan with a rehabilitation plan
requires minimum contributions from the Company. Given the status of these plans, it is reasonably possible that
future contributions to the plans
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will increase although the Company cannot reasonably estimate a possible range of increased contributions as of
December 31, 2014.
The Company did not contribute more than 5% of any fund’s total contributions in any of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014. The table below sets forth the contributions made by the Company to each multiemployer
plan for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):
Pension Fund 2014 2013 2012
National Integrated Group Pension Plan $233 $222 $202
Sheet Metal Workers’ National Pension Plan 61 78 98
Sheet Metal Workers’ Pension Plan of Northern California 35 28 33

$329 $328 $333
At the date the financial statements were issued, Forms 5500 were not available for the plan year ended December 31,
2014.

Total Retirement Plan Expense
Total expense for all retirement plans for the years ended December 31 was (in thousands):
2014 2013 2012
$2,816 $2,838 $2,884
9. OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company has an unfunded postretirement healthcare plan which provides health insurance to certain employees
and their spouses upon retirement. This plan has been frozen and no additional participants will be added to the plan in
the future.
The following table presents the changes in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation related to the Company’s
unfunded postretirement healthcare benefits at December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligation at January 1 $5,900 $5,954 $5,120
Service cost 16 16 15
Interest cost 255 203 224
Plan amendments — 603 —
Actuarial (gain) loss 2,387 (553 ) 899
Benefits paid, net of contributions (356 ) (323 ) (304 )
Projected benefit obligation at December 31 8,202 5,900 5,954
Fair value of plan assets — — —
Under funded status (8,202 ) (5,900 ) (5,954 )
Unamortized prior service cost 559 603 —
Unrecognized actuarial loss 3,962 1,653 2,329
Net amount recognized $(3,681 ) $(3,644 ) $(3,625 )

In October 2014 the Society of Actuaries issued new mortality tables and a mortality improvement scale which were
applied when measuring the postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2014. Because the new tables and
improvement scale reflect today’s longer life expectancies, it resulted in an actuarial loss and an increase in our
projected benefit obligation. As a result, we expect future net periodic postretirement benefit cost charged to expense
to increase as a result of increases in the amortization of the actuarial loss.
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements consisted of (in thousands):
2014 2013 2012

Accrued postretirement benefit liability
Current portion $(368 ) $(356 ) $(322 )
Long term portion (7,834 ) (5,544 ) (5,632 )
Pre-tax accumulated other comprehensive loss – unamortized
post-retirement healthcare costs 4,521 2,256 2,329

Net amount recognized $(3,681 ) $(3,644 ) $(3,625 )
Components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost charged to expense for the years ended December 31 were as
follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Service cost $16 $16 $15
Interest cost 255 203 224
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 44 — (1 )
Loss amortization (2) 78 123 111
Net periodic benefit cost $393 $342 $349
Assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligation:
Discount rate 3.7 % 4.5 % 3.5 %
Annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of:
Medical costs before age 65 (1) 8.0 % 8.5 % 9.0 %
Medical costs after age 65 (1) 7.0 % 7.3 % 7.5 %
Prescription drug costs (1) 9.0 % 7.8 % 8.0 %

(1)    It was assumed that these rates would gradually decline to 4% by 2022.
(2)      Actuarial (gains)/losses are amortized utilizing the corridor approach. Differences between actual experience
and the actuarial assumptions are reflected in (gain)/loss. If the total net (gain) or loss exceeds 10 percent of the
greater of the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation or plan asset, this excess must be amortized over the
average remaining service period of the active plan participants. If most of the plan participants are inactive, the
amortization period is the expected future lifetime of inactive plan participants.

A 1% change in the annual medical inflation rate issued would have the following impact on the amounts reported at
December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
1% increase $969 $697
1% decrease $(830 ) $(597 )
Effect on annual service and interest costs
1% increase $34 $27
1% decrease $(28 ) $(23 )
The measurement date used to determine postretirement benefit obligation measures was December 31.
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Expected benefit payments from the plan for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in thousands):
2015 $368
2016 $369
2017 $387
2018 $397
2019 $418
Years 2020 - 2024 $2,254
10. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME
The cumulative balance of each component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income is as follows (in
thousands):

Foreign
Currency
Translation
Adjustment

Cash
Flow
Hedges

Minimum
Pension
Liability
Adjustment

Unamortized
Post-Retirement
Health Care
Costs

Total
Pre-Tax
Amount

Tax
(Benefit)
Expense

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Balance at December 31, 2012$ (93 ) $— $ (8 ) $ (2,328 ) $(2,429 ) $(854 ) $ (1,575 )
Other comprehensive loss on
cash flow hedge before
reclassification

— — — — — — —

Reclassified loss on cash flow
hedge from other
comprehensive (loss) income

— — — — — — —

Minimum pension and post
retirement health care plan
adjustments

— — 84 72 156 58 98

Foreign currency gain (2,108 ) — — — (2,108 ) — (2,108 )
Balance at December 31, 2013$ (2,201 ) $— $ 76 $ (2,256 ) $(4,381 ) $(796 ) $ (3,585 )
Other comprehensive loss on
cash flow hedge before
reclassification

— (875 ) — — (875 ) (319 ) (556 )

Reclassified loss on cash flow
hedge from other
comprehensive (loss) income

— 650 — — 650 237 413

Minimum pension and post
retirement health care plan
adjustments

— — (33 ) (2,265 ) (2,298 ) (839 ) (1,459 )

Foreign currency gain (4,364 ) — — — (4,364 ) — (4,364 )
Balance at December 31, 2014$ (6,565 ) $(225 ) $ 43 $ (4,521 ) $(11,268) $(1,717 ) $ (9,551 )

The realized losses relating to the Company’s foreign currency cash flow hedges were reclassified from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Loss and included in net sales in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The realized adjustments relating to the Company’s minimum pension liability and post retirement health care costs
were reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss and included in Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The estimated net amount of the existing unrealized loss on cash flow hedges that is expected to be reclassified into
earnings within the next twelve months is $225,000.
11. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION
Equity-based payments to employees and directors, including grants of stock options, restricted stock units, and
restricted stock, are recognized in the statements of operations based on the grant-date fair value of the award. The
Company uses the straight-line method of attributing the value of stock-based compensation expense over the vesting
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awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period. Vesting requirements vary for directors, executives, and
key employees with a vesting period that typically equals four years with graded vesting.
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The Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the Plan) is an incentive compensation plan that allows the
Company to grant equity-based incentive compensation awards to eligible participants to provide them an additional
incentive to promote the business of the Company, to increase their proprietary interest in the success of the
Company, and to encourage them to remain in the Company’s employ. Awards under the plan may be in the form of
options, restricted shares, restricted units, performance shares, performance stock units, and rights. The Plan provides
for the issuance of up to 3,000,000 shares of common stock. Of the total number of shares of common stock issuable
under the Plan, the aggregate number of shares which may be issued in connection with grants of incentive stock
options and rights cannot exceed 900,000 shares. Vesting terms and award life are governed by the award document.

Options, Restricted Stock Units, Restricted Stock Awards
The following table provides the number of restricted stock units (that will convert to shares upon vesting) and shares
of restricted stock that were issued during the years ended December 31 along with the weighted-average grant-date
fair value of each award:

2014 2013 2012

Awards Number of
Awards

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Awards

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Awards

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Restricted stock units 218,857 $16.96 150,570 $14.60 151,452 $13.58
Restricted shares 21,721 $16.76 13,188 $16.83 11,130 $11.86
At December 31, 2014, 376,000 shares were available for issuance under the Plan as incentive stock options or other
stock awards.
The Company recognized the following compensation expense in connection with awards that vested under the 2005
Equity Incentive Plan and previously terminated plans along with the related tax benefits recognized during the years
ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Expense recognized under terminated plans $— $— $18
Expense recognized under the Plan 3,150 2,564 3,130
Total stock compensation expense $3,150 $2,564 $3,148
Tax benefits recognized related to stock compensation expense $1,229 $1,000 $1,228
The fair value of the restricted shares and restricted stock units issued during the three years ended December 31, 2014
was based on the grant-date market price. The fair value of stock options granted was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. No options were granted in 2014, 2013, and 2012. Expected stock
volatility was based on volatility of the Company’s stock price using a historical period commensurate with the
expected life of the options.
The following table summarizes the ranges of outstanding and exercisable options at December 31, 2014:

Range of Exercise Prices Options
Outstanding

Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
(in years)

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Options
Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$8.90 – $8.90 59,175 5.70 $8.90 59,175 $8.90
$9.74 – $9.74 157,264 6.70 $9.74 113,514 $9.74
$11.89 – $18.78 148,781 3.54 $15.98 148,781 $15.98
$20.52 – $23.78 204,099 2.35 $22.56 204,099 $22.56

569,319 525,569

The weighted average remaining life of options exercisable at December 31, 2014 is 4.00 years. The intrinsic value of
options exercisable at December 31, 2014 was $1,393,000.
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The following table summarizes information about stock option transactions:

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

Balance at January 1, 2012 770,499 $14.74
Exercised (27,500 ) 9.70
Forfeited (31,375 ) 13.76
Balance at December 31, 2012 711,624 $14.97
Exercised (59,750 ) 11.00
Forfeited (29,750 ) 12.38
Balance at December 31, 2013 622,124 $15.48
Exercised (52,805 ) 11.18
Balance at December 31, 2014 569,319 $15.88 4.00 $1,393,000
The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the $16.26 per
share market price of the Company’s common stock as of December 31, 2014, which would have been received by the
option holders had all option holders with an exercise price below the per share market price on December 31, 2014,
exercised their options as of that date.
The following table sets forth the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised and aggregate fair value of restricted
stock units and restricted shares that vested during the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised $326 $398 $115
Aggregate fair value of vested restricted stock units $2,416 $1,900 $2,760
Aggregate fair value of vested restricted shares $364 $222 $193
The following table summarizes information about non-vested restricted stock units (that will convert to shares upon
vesting) and restricted shares:

Restricted
Stock Units

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Restricted
Shares

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Balance at December 31, 2013 576,724 $14.77 5,053 $14.37
Granted 218,857 16.96 21,721 16.76
Vested (136,110 ) 16.13 (16,515 ) 16.57
Forfeited (11,979 ) 13.21 — —
Balance at December 31, 2014 647,492 15.26 10,259 15.89
As of December 31, 2014, there was $4,300,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
options, restricted shares, and restricted stock units. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 3.3 years.
Performance Stock Units

In January 2012, the Company awarded 295,000 performance stock units with grant date fair value of $4,152,000. As
of December 31, 2012, 280,000 of the originally awarded performance stock units remained outstanding after
forfeitures. The final number of performance stock units earned was based on the Company’s total stockholder returns
relative to the S&P Small Cap 600 Index for the calendar year of 2012. During the performance period, the
participants earned 58.3% of target, aggregating 163,200 performance stock units compared to the target of 280,000
awards.
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In January 2013, the Company awarded 304,000 performance stock units with grant date fair value of $4,123,000. As
of December 31, 2013, 237,000 of the originally awarded performance stock units remained outstanding after
forfeitures. The final number of performance stock units earned was determined based on the Company’s actual return
on invested capital (ROIC) for 2013 relative to the improved ROIC targeted for the performance period ending
December 31, 2013. During the performance period, the participants earned 50.0% of target, aggregating 114,000
performance stock units compared to the target of 237,000 awards.
In January 2014 and June 2014, the Company awarded 212,000 and 19,000, respectively, of performance stock units
with a grant date fair value of $3,914,000 and $319,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2014, 224,000 of the
originally awarded performance stock units remain outstanding after forfeitures. The final number of performance
stock units earned will be determined based on the Company's actual return on invested capital (ROIC) for 2014.
Based on the actual 2014 ROIC, no shares were earned during the performance period.
The cost of the 2012, 2013, and 2014 performance stock awards are recognized over the requisite vesting period,
which ranges between one year and three years, depending on the date a participant turns 60 and completes 5 years of
service. After the vesting period, any performance stock units earned will convert to cash based on the trailing 90-day
closing price of the Company’s common stock as of December 31, 2014, 2015, and 2016 and be payable to participants
in January 2015, 2016, and 2017, respectively.
The following table summarizes the compensation expense recognized from the change in fair value and vesting of
performance stock units awarded for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Performance stock unit compensation expense $31 $2,214 $1,639
Management Stock Purchase Plan
The Management Stock Purchase Plan (MSPP) is an integral component of the Plan and provides participants the
ability to defer a portion of their salary, their annual bonus under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan, and
Directors’ fees. The deferral is converted to restricted stock units and credited to an account together with a
company-match in restricted stock units equal to a percentage of the deferral amount. The account is converted to cash
at the trailing 200-day average closing price of the Company’s stock and payable to the participants upon a termination
of their service to the Company. The matching portion vests only if the participant has reached their sixtieth
(60th) birthday. If a participant terminates prior to age sixty (60), the match is forfeited. Upon termination, the account
is converted to a cash account that accrues interest at 2% over the then current ten-year U.S. Treasury note rate. The
account is then paid out in either one lump sum, or in five or ten equal annual cash installments at the participant’s
election.
The fair value of restricted stock units held in the MSPP equals the trailing 200-day average closing price of the
Company’s common stock as of the last day of the period. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012, respectively, 119,105, 132,037, and 253,587 restricted stock units that will convert to cash upon vesting were
credited to participant accounts. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the value of the restricted stock units in the MSPP
was $15.68 and $15.97 per unit, respectively. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, 647,371 and 614,888 restricted stock
units were credited to participant accounts including 62,455 and 47,268, respectively, of unvested restricted stock
units.
The MSPP is a share-based liability settled in cash. The following table sets forth the cash paid to settle these liability
awards and expense recognized for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Share-based liabilities paid $2,120 $531 $542
MSPP expense $329 $3,857 $1,180
12. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The
primary risks that the Company manages through its derivative instruments are foreign currency exchange rate risk
and commodity pricing risk. Accordingly, we have instituted hedging programs that are accounted for in accordance
with Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.”
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•

Our foreign currency hedging program is a cash flow hedge program designed to limit the exposure to variability in
expected future cash flows. The Company uses foreign currency forward agreements and currency options, all of
which mature within fourteen months, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in the foreign currency exchange rates.
These contracts are not currently designated as hedging instruments in accordance with Topic 815, and therefore
changes in fair value are recorded through earnings.

•

Our commodity price hedging program is designed to mitigate the risks associated with market fluctuations in the
price of commodities. The Company uses commodity options, which are classified as economic hedges, to manage
this risk. All economic hedges are recorded at fair value through earnings, as the Company does not qualify to use the
hedge accounting designation as prescribed by Topic 815.

Although certain of our derivative financial instruments do not qualify or are not accounted for under hedge
accounting, we do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We
monitor our derivative positions using techniques including market valuations and sensitivity analyses. Hedge
accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument
with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability. These changes in fair value are
attributable to the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge.

We consider the classification of the underlying hedged item’s cash flows in determining the classification for the
designated derivative instrument’s cash flows. We classify derivative instrument cash flows from hedges of changes in
foreign currency as operating activities due to the nature of the hedged item. Cash flows from derivative instruments
not designated under hedge accounting, such as our aluminum price options, are classified as investing activities.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
To minimize commodity price exposure, the Company has commodity options with notional amounts of $10,440,000
at December 31, 2014. These derivative instruments mature at various times through January 2016.

To minimize foreign currency exposure, the Company has foreign currency options with notional amounts of
$83,500,000 at December 31, 2014. These derivative instruments mature at various times through February 2016.

These commodity options and forward exchange options are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recorded to other income in the consolidated statement of operations. The losses
(gains) recognized for the twelve months ended December 31, are as follows (in thousands):
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 2014 2013 2012
Commodity options 685 — —
Foreign exchange forwards (731 ) — —
Foreign exchange options (1) (1,015 ) — —
Total non-designated derivative realized (gain) loss, net (1,061 ) — —

(1) Includes a loss of $477,000 for the discontinuation of cash flow hedges for which the forecasted transactions are
not expected to occur within the originally forecasted time frame.

Summary of Derivatives
Derivatives consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments Classification Fair Value Fair Value
Commodity options Other current assets $591 $—
Commodity options Other assets 162 —

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

105



Foreign exchange options Other current assets 1,851 —
Foreign exchange options Other assets 445 —

Total assets $3,049 $—
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13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
FASB ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,” defines fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires certain disclosures about fair value measurements. A fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer a liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or
liability. Fair value is defined based upon an exit price model. ASC 820 establishes a valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of the inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels. A financial asset or liability’s classification
within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
follows:

•Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to the reporting entity at the measurement
date for identical assets and liabilities.

•
Level 2 - Inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly through market corroboration, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

•Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the assets or liability supported by little or no market activity. Level 3 inputs are
based on the Company’s assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value.

As described in Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company acquired the assets of one business
during the year ended December 31, 2013. The estimated fair values allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed relied upon fair value measurements based in part on Level 3 inputs. The valuation techniques used to assign
fair values to inventory, property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets included the cost approach, market
approach, relief-from-royalty approach, and other income approaches. The valuation techniques relied on a number of
inputs that included the cost and condition of the property, plant and equipment, forecasted net sales and incomes, and
royalty rates. In addition, the Company has a contingent consideration liability related to the earn-out provision for the
2013 acquisition discussed in Note 4 that is recorded at fair value on a recurring basis each reporting period. A
discounted cash flow analysis, which takes into account a discount rate, forecasted EBITDA of the acquired business
and the Company’s estimate of the probability of the acquired business achieving the forecasted EBITDA is used to
determine the fair value of this liability at each reporting period until the liability will be settled in 2015. The fair
value of this liability is determined using Level 3 inputs. The fair value of this liability is sensitive primarily to
changes in the forecasted EBITDA of the acquired business.
As described in Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company holds derivative foreign currency
exchange forwards, foreign currency exchange options and commodity options. The fair values of foreign currency
exchange contracts are determined through the use of cash flow models that utilize observable market data inputs to
estimate fair value. These observable market data inputs include foreign exchange rate and credit spread curves. In
addition, the Company received fair value estimates from the foreign currency contract counterparties to verify the
reasonableness of the Company’s estimates.
The fair value of commodity options is determined through the use of cash flow models that utilize observable market
data inputs to estimate fair value. These observable market data inputs include forward rates and implied volatility. In
addition, the Company received fair value estimates from the commodity contract counterparty to verify the
reasonableness of the Company’s estimates.
The Company’s other financial instruments primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes
receivable, and accounts payable, and long-term debt.  The carrying values for our financial instruments approximate
fair value with the exception, at times, of long-term debt. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of
outstanding debt was $213,600,000 and $214,007,000, respectively.  The fair value of the Company’s Senior
Subordinated 6.25% Notes was estimated based on quoted market prices. 
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The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, our assets (liabilities) carried at fair value as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

December 31, 2014
Classification Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Carried at fair value
Contingent consideration liability Accrued expenses $— $— $328 $328
Foreign currency exchange options Other current assets — 1,851 — 1,851
Foreign currency exchange options Other assets — 445 — 445
Commodity instruments Other current assets — 591 — 591
Commodity instruments Other assets — 162 — 162

Disclosed at fair value
Total long-term debt Long-term debt $215,831 $— $— $215,831

December 31, 2013
Classification Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Carried at fair value
Contingent consideration liability Accrued expenses $— $— $1,864 $1,864

Disclosed at fair value
Total long-term debt Long-term debt $220,825 $— $— $220,825
The Company did not hold any derivatives as of December 31, 2013. The Company did not have any other material
assets or liabilities carried at fair value and measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Contingent consideration liability
As described in Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company acquired the assets of a business in
2013 for which a portion of the purchase consideration is based on an earn out provision. This liability resulting from
this earn-out provision is based on the acquired business’s future EBITDA through 2015. A discounted cash flow
analysis, incorporating a Monte Carlo simulation, was used to determine the fair value of a contingent consideration
liability. The simulation used a triangular distribution of 500,000 trails and was performed incorporating assumptions
such as project future incomes, upside potentials, low-end expectations, expected synergies to calculate the EBITDA.
The calculated EBITDA was subsequently discounted at the pretax cost of debt to determine the fair value. The
liability is revalued at each year end for actual EBITDA incurred during the earn-out period to determine the updated
fair value.

Other nonrecurring fair value measurements
The Company also recognized the impairment of certain property, plant, and equipment during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012. The impairment charges were calculated by determining the fair value of the
property, plant, and equipment using unobservable inputs which primarily include replacement cost less depreciation
or market data for transactions involving similar assets. These inputs are classified as Level 3 inputs. See Note 15 of
the consolidated financial statements for more disclosure regarding the impairment of certain property, plant, and
equipment.
During 2014, 2013, and 2012, the Company also recognized impairments to intangible assets. The impairment charges
were calculated by determining the fair value of these assets. The fair value measurements were calculated using
discounted cash flow analyses which rely upon unobservable inputs classified as Level 3 inputs. See Note 5 of the
consolidated financial statements for more disclosure regarding the impairment of intangible assets.
The Company also applied fair value principles during the goodwill impairment tests performed during 2014, 2013,
and 2012. Step one of the goodwill impairment test consisted of determining a fair value for each of the Company’s
reporting units. The fair value for the Company’s reporting units cannot be determined using readily available quoted
Level 1 or Level 2 inputs that are observable or available from active markets. Therefore, the Company used two
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of its reporting units, both of which use Level 3 inputs. To estimate the fair values of reporting units, the Company
uses significant estimates and judgmental factors. The key estimates and factors used in the valuation models include
revenue growth rates and profit margins based on internal forecasts, terminal value, WACC, and earnings multiples.
As a result of the goodwill impairment test performed during 2014, 2013, and 2012, the Company recognized
goodwill impairment charges. See Note 5 of the consolidated financial statements for the results of the Company’s
goodwill impairment tests.

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For certain divestiture transactions, the Company has agreed to indemnify the buyer for various liabilities that may
arise after the disposal date, subject to limits of time and amount. The Company is a party to certain claims made
under these indemnification provisions. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, management
recorded a contingent liability for such provisions related to discontinued operations. Management does not believe
that the outcome of such claims, or other claims, would significantly affect the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.
15. EXIT ACTIVITY COSTS AND ASSET IMPAIRMENTS
The Company focuses on being the low-cost provider of its products by reducing operating costs and implementing
lean manufacturing initiatives, which have in part led to the consolidation of facilities and product lines. The
Company consolidated two facilities each year during 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively, in this effort.
During this process, the Company has incurred exit activity costs, including contract termination costs, severance
costs, and other moving and closing costs. If future opportunities for cost savings are identified, other facility
consolidations and closings will be considered.

During 2014, the Company incurred a net change in asset impairment charges of $455,000, the net result of a gain on
the sale of one of the consolidated facilities previously impaired in 2013, partially offset by impairment charges for
the other facility consolidated during 2014. The following table sets forth the asset impairment charges (recovery)
incurred by segment during the years ended December 31 related to the restructuring activities described above (in
thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Residential Products $(580 ) $1,616 $1,932
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 125 — —
Corporate — — 140
Total asset impairment charges (recovery) related to restructuring
activities $(455 ) $1,616 $2,072

The following table provides a summary of exit activity costs and asset impairments by segment for the years ended
December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Residential Products $752 $2,521 $2,457
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 919 113 1,407
Corporate — — 140
Total exit activity costs and asset impairments $1,671 $2,634 $4,004
The following table provides a summary of where the above exit activity costs and asset impairments are recorded in
the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Cost of sales $843 $2,519 $3,741
Selling, general, and administrative expense 828 115 263
Total exit activity costs and asset impairments $1,671 $2,634 $4,004
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The following table reconciles the beginning and ending liability for exit activity costs relating to the Company’s
facility consolidation efforts (in thousands):

2014 2013
Balance as of January 1 $1,092 $1,323
Exit activity costs recognized 2,126 1,018
Cash payments (2,643 ) (1,249 )
Balance as of December 31 $575 $1,092
16. INCOME TAXES
The components of income (loss) before taxes from continuing operations consisted of the following for the years
ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Domestic $(87,179 ) $19,787 $18,468
Foreign 2,429 (20,619 ) 3,699
(Loss) income before taxes from continuing operations $(84,750 ) $(832 ) $22,167
The provision for (benefit of) income taxes from continuing operations for the years ended December 31 consisted of
the following (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Current:
U.S. Federal $1,684 $3,635 $5,780
State 1,265 1,507 1,483
Foreign 733 892 1,260
Total current 3,682 6,034 8,523
Deferred:
U.S. Federal (6,373 ) 2,655 844
State (203 ) (2,847 ) 489
Foreign (64 ) (1,045 ) (339 )
Total deferred (6,640 ) (1,237 ) 994
Provision for income taxes $(2,958 ) $4,797 $9,517

The (benefit of) provision for income taxes from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31 consisted
of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Current:
U.S. Federal $(18 ) $(3 ) $(98 )
State (1 ) — (186 )
Foreign — — —
(Benefit of) provision for income taxes $(19 ) $(3 ) $(284 )
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The provision for income taxes from continuing operations differs from the federal statutory rate of 35% for the years
December 31 due to the following (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Statutory rate $(29,664 ) 35.0  % $(291 ) 35.0  % $7,758 35.0  %
Intangible asset impairment 26,637 (31.4 )% 7,241 (870.3 )% 1,514 6.8  %
State taxes, less federal effect 606 (0.7 )% 1,382 (166.1 )% 1,282 5.8  %
Change in valuation allowance 94 (0.1 )% (2,268 ) 272.6  % (39 ) (0.2 )%
Federal tax credits (255 ) 0.3  % (517 ) 62.1  % (270 ) (1.2 )%
Uncertain tax positions (169 ) 0.2  % (515 ) 61.9  % (872 ) (3.9 )%
Foreign rate differential (311 ) 0.4  % (163 ) 19.6  % (335 ) (1.5 )%
Non-deductible expenses 173 (0.2 )% (66 ) 7.9  % 366 1.7  %
Other (69 ) —  % (6 ) 0.7  % 113 0.5  %

$(2,958 ) 3.5  % $4,797 (576.6 )% $9,517 43.0  %
Deferred tax liabilities (assets) at December 31 consist of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013
Depreciation $18,896 $19,278
Goodwill 29,175 33,982
Intangible assets 18,637 20,951
Other 1,464 1,466
Gross deferred tax liabilities 68,172 75,677
Equity compensation (11,826 ) (12,858 )
Other (16,988 ) (15,623 )
Gross deferred tax assets (28,814 ) (28,481 )
Valuation allowances 400 306
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances (28,414 ) (28,175 )
Net deferred tax liabilities $39,758 $47,502
Net current deferred tax assets of $10,014,000 and $7,622,000 are included in other current assets in the consolidated
balance sheet at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Deferred taxes include net deferred tax assets relating to certain state and foreign tax jurisdictions. A reduction of the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance is required if it is more likely than not that such assets
will not be realized. The following sets forth a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the Company’s
valuation allowance (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Balance as of January 1 $306 $2,574 $2,613
Cost charged to the tax provision 144 — 266
Reductions (50 ) (2,268 ) (305 )
Balance as of December 31 $400 $306 $2,574
The Company made net payments for income taxes, for the following amounts for the years ended December 31 (in
thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Payments made for income taxes, net $(6,509 ) $(7,564 ) $(8,944 )
Provision has not been made for U.S. taxes on $28,237,000 of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Those
earnings have been and will continue to be indefinitely reinvested. As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s foreign
operations held
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$19,144,000 of cash that provides foreign operations with liquidity to reinvest in working capital and capital
expenditures for their operations. Any excess earnings could be used to grow the Company’s foreign operations
through launches of new capital projects or additional acquisitions. Determination of the amount of unrecognized
deferred U.S. income tax liability is not practicable due to the complexities associated with its hypothetical
calculation.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Balance as of January 1 $1,694 $2,485 $3,687
Additions for tax positions of the current year 180 83 105
Additions for tax positions of prior years 93 — 67
Reductions for tax positions of prior years for:
Settlements and changes in judgment (154 ) (26 ) (857 )
Lapses of applicable statute of limitations (399 ) (848 ) (517 )
Balance as of December 31 $1,414 $1,694 $2,485
The Company and its U.S. subsidiaries file a U.S. federal consolidated income tax return. Foreign and U.S. state
jurisdictions have statute of limitations generally ranging from four to ten years. Currently, the Company is under
examination in Germany for 2009 through 2012 and the United States for 2012 through 2013.
All unrecognized tax benefits would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The
Company classifies accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Interest
(net of federal tax benefit) and penalties recognized during the years ended December 31 were (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Interest and penalties recognized as income $(28 ) $(92 ) $(48 )
At December 31, 2014, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards for federal, state, and foreign income tax
purposes totaling $31,700,000 which will expire between 2015 and 2033. The Company recognized $1,796,000 of
deferred tax assets, net of the federal tax benefit, related to these net operating losses prior to any valuation
allowances.
17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings
per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, as well as dilutive potential
common shares which, in the Company’s case, include shares issuable under the equity compensation plans described
in Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements. The weighted average number of shares and conversions utilized
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share does not include potential anti-dilutive common shares aggregating
503,000, 762,000, and 973,000 at December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively. The treasury stock method is
used to calculate dilutive shares, which reduces the gross number of dilutive shares by the number of shares
purchasable from the proceeds of the options assumed to be exercised and the unrecognized expense related to the
restricted stock and restricted stock awards assumed to have vested.
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The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Numerator:
(Loss) income from continuing operations $(81,792 ) $(5,629 ) $12,650
(Loss) income from discontinued operations (32 ) (4 ) (5 )
Net (loss) income available to common shareholders $(81,824 ) $(5,633 ) $12,645
Denominator for basic earnings per share:
Weighted average shares outstanding 31,066 30,930 30,752
Denominator for diluted earnings per share:
Common stock options and restricted stock — — 105
Weighted average shares and conversions 31,066 30,930 30,857
For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, all stock options, unvested restricted stock, and unvested restricted
stock units were anti-dilutive and, therefore, not included in the dilutive loss per share calculations. The number of
weighted average stock options, unvested restricted stock, and unvested restricted stock units that were not included in
the dilutive loss per share calculations because the effect would have been anti-dilutive was 211,000 and 177,000
shares for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases. As leases expire, it can be expected that,
in the normal course of business, certain leases will be renewed or replaced. Certain lease agreements include
escalating rent payments over the lease terms. The Company expenses rent on a straight-line basis over the lease term
which commences on the date the Company has the right to control the property. Rent expense under operating leases
for the years ended December 31 aggregated (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Rent expense $12,290 $11,796 $11,178
Future minimum lease payments under these noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2013 are as follows
(in thousands):
2015 $10,612
2016 $8,614
2017 $7,659
2018 $5,987
2019 $3,310
Thereafter $6,557
The Company offers various product warranties to its customers concerning the quality of its products and services.
Based upon the short duration of warranty periods and favorable historical warranty experience, the Company
determined that a warranty accrual at December 31, 2014 and 2013 was not required.
The Company is a party to certain claims and legal actions generally incidental to its business. Management does not
believe that the outcome of these actions, which are not clearly determinable at the present time, would significantly
affect the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.
Escheat Audits
The State of Delaware, Department of Finance, Division of Revenue (Unclaimed Property), has notified numerous
companies, including Gibraltar Industries, Inc., that the State will examine its books and records and those of its
subsidiaries and related entities to determine compliance with the Delaware Escheat Laws. The review is being
conducted by a third party on behalf of the State. Sixteen other states have retained the same third party and have sent
similar notifications to Gibraltar. The scope of
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each state’s audit varies. The State of Delaware advises, for example, that the scope of its examination will be for the
period 1981 through the present. The exposure, if any, related to the audits is not currently determinable.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Prior to his retirement as of December 31, 2014, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, Gerald S. Lippes,
was a partner in a law firm that provided legal services to the Company. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company had $374,000 and $296,000 recorded in accounts payable for amounts due to this law firm, respectively. For
the years ended December 31, the Company incurred the following costs for legal services from this firm, including
services provided in connection with the sale of businesses and recognized as a component of discontinued operations
as well as deferred debt issuance costs (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Selling, general, and administrative expense $1,357 $1,763 $1,511
Discontinued operations — — 12
Capitalized as deferred financing costs — 223 —
Total related-party legal costs $1,357 $1,986 $1,523
Effective September 30, 2013, Henning N. Kornbrekke, the former President and Chief Operating Officer, retired and
entered into a consulting agreement with the Company. Through this agreement, he served as a consultant to the
Company through December 2014 for a monetary fee of $10,000 per month.
20. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company is organized into two reportable segments on the basis of the production process and products and
services provided by each segment, identified as follows:

(i)Residential Products, which primarily includes roof and foundation ventilation products, mail and package storage
products, rain dispersion products and roofing accessories; and

(ii)Industrial and Infrastructure Products, which primarily includes fabricated bar grating, expanded and perforated
metal, expansion joints and structural bearings.

When determining the reportable segments, the Company aggregated several operating segments based on their
similar economic and operating characteristics.
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The following table illustrates certain measurements used by management to assess the performance of the segments
described above as of and for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Net sales
Residential Products $431,915 $394,071 $375,105
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 431,432 435,168 416,289
Less: Intersegment sales (1,260 ) (1,672 ) (1,336 )

862,087 827,567 790,058
Income (loss) from operations
Residential Products $16,416 $34,965 $23,902
Industrial and Infrastructure Products (74,634 ) 7,169 34,634
Unallocated Corporate Expenses (12,199 ) (20,654 ) (18,275 )

$(70,417 ) $21,480 $40,261
Depreciation and amortization
Residential Products $10,699 $11,421 $11,572
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 13,910 14,688 13,565
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 823 941 1,207

$25,432 $27,050 $26,344
Total assets
Residential Products $394,092 $389,506 $399,986
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 308,150 411,093 437,581
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 111,918 93,563 46,107

$814,160 $894,162 $883,674
Capital expenditures
Residential Products $12,731 $5,937 $5,252
Industrial and Infrastructure Products 10,425 8,755 5,471
Unallocated Corporate Expenses 135 248 628

$23,291 $14,940 $11,351

Net sales by region or origin and long-lived assets by region of domicile for the years ended and as of December 31
are as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Net sales:
North America $816,473 $784,926 $741,675
Europe 45,614 42,641 48,383
Total $862,087 $827,567 $790,058
Long-lived assets:
North America $126,513 $130,407 $150,255
Europe 8,957 8,210 7,449
Total $135,470 $138,617 $157,704
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21. SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The following information sets forth the consolidating summary financial statements of the issuer (Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.) and guarantors, which guarantee the Senior Subordinated 6.25% Notes due February 1, 2021, and the
non-guarantors. The guarantors are 100% owned subsidiaries of the issuer and the guarantees are full, unconditional,
joint and several.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the parent using the equity method of accounting. The guarantor
subsidiaries and non-guarantor subsidiaries are presented on a combined basis. The principal elimination entries
eliminate investments in subsidiaries and intercompany balances and transactions.
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $— $792,078 $88,096 $(18,087 ) $862,087
Cost of sales — 661,041 77,914 (16,913 ) 722,042
Gross profit — 131,037 10,182 (1,174 ) 140,045
Selling, general, and administrative
expense 128 95,735 6,629 — 102,492

Intangible asset impairment — 107,970 — — 107,970
(Loss) income from operations (128 ) (72,668 ) 3,553 (1,174 ) (70,417 )
Interest expense (income) 13,568 995 (142 ) — 14,421
Other expense (income) 144 (328 ) 96 — (88 )
(Loss) income before taxes (13,840 ) (73,335 ) 3,599 (1,174 ) (84,750 )
(Benefit of) provision for income
taxes (4,381 ) 753 670 — (2,958 )

(Loss) income from continuing
operations (9,459 ) (74,088 ) 2,929 (1,174 ) (81,792 )

Discontinued operations:
Loss before taxes — (51 ) — — (51 )
Benefit of income taxes — (19 ) — — (19 )
Loss from discontinued operations — (32 ) — — (32 )
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries (71,191 ) 2,929 — 68,262 —
Net (loss) income $(80,650 ) $(71,191 ) $2,929 $67,088 $(81,824 )
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $— $758,790 $91,198 $(22,421 ) $827,567
Cost of sales — 610,049 81,073 (21,652 ) 669,470
Gross profit — 148,741 10,125 (769 ) 158,097
Selling, general, and administrative
expense 171 105,693 7,593 — 113,457

Intangible asset impairment — 1,000 22,160 — 23,160
(Loss) income from operations (171 ) 42,048 (19,628 ) (769 ) 21,480
Interest expense (income) 21,214 1,399 (124 ) — 22,489
Other income — (177 ) — — (177 )
(Loss) income before taxes (21,385 ) 40,826 (19,504 ) (769 ) (832 )
(Benefit of) provision for income
taxes (7,480 ) 12,430 (153 ) — 4,797

(Loss) income from continuing
operations (13,905 ) 28,396 (19,351 ) (769 ) (5,629 )

Discontinued operations:
Loss before taxes — (7 ) — — (7 )
Benefit of income taxes — (3 ) — — (3 )
Loss from discontinued operations — (4 ) — — (4 )
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries 9,041 (19,351 ) — 10,310 —
Net (loss) income $(4,864 ) $9,041 $(19,351 ) $9,541 $(5,633 )
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net sales $— $712,279 $98,304 $(20,525 ) $790,058
Cost of sales — 574,647 85,407 (19,556 ) 640,498
Gross profit — 137,632 12,897 (969 ) 149,560
Selling, general, and administrative
expense 23 96,499 8,149 — 104,671

Intangible asset impairment — 4,628 — — 4,628
(Loss) income from operations (23 ) 36,505 4,748 (969 ) 40,261
Interest expense (income) 17,422 1,285 (125 ) — 18,582
Other income — (480 ) (8 ) — (488 )
(Loss) income before taxes (17,445 ) 35,700 4,881 (969 ) 22,167
(Benefit of) provision for income
taxes (6,524 ) 15,120 921 — 9,517

(Loss) income from continuing
operations (10,921 ) 20,580 3,960 (969 ) 12,650

Discontinued operations:
Loss before taxes — (289 ) — — (289 )
Benefit of income taxes — (284 ) — — (284 )
Loss from discontinued operations — (5 ) — — (5 )
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries 24,535 3,960 — (28,495 ) —
Net income $13,614 $24,535 $3,960 $(29,464 ) $12,645
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net (loss) income $(80,650 ) $(71,191 ) $2,929 $67,088 $(81,824 )
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — (4,364 ) — (4,364 )

Adjustment to retirement benefit
liability, net of tax — 3 (27 ) — (24 )

Adjustment to post-retirement
healthcare benefit liability, net of tax — (1,435 ) — — (1,435 )

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges,
net of tax — (143 ) — — (143 )

Other comprehensive income (loss) — (1,575 ) (4,391 ) — (5,966 )
Total comprehensive (loss) income $(80,650 ) $(72,766 ) $(1,462 ) $67,088 $(87,790 )
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net (loss) income $(4,864 ) $9,041 $(19,351 ) $9,541 $(5,633 )
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — (2,108 ) — (2,108 )

Adjustment to retirement benefit
liability, net of tax — 53 — — 53

Adjustment to post-retirement
healthcare benefit liability, net of tax — 45 — — 45

Other comprehensive income (loss) — 98 (2,108 ) — (2,010 )
Total comprehensive (loss) income $(4,864 ) $9,139 $(21,459 ) $9,541 $(7,643 )
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net income $13,614 $24,535 $3,960 $(29,464 ) $12,645
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Foreign currency translation
adjustment — — 2,353 — 2,353

Adjustment to retirement benefit
liability, net of tax — (79 ) — — (79 )

Adjustment to post-retirement
healthcare benefit liability, net of tax — (499 ) — — (499 )

Other comprehensive (loss) income — (578 ) 2,353 — 1,775
Total comprehensive income $13,614 $23,957 $6,313 $(29,464 ) $14,420
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $— $91,466 $19,144 $— $110,610
Accounts receivable, net — 91,713 9,428 — 101,141
Intercompany balances 21,619 (1,850 ) (19,769 ) — —
Inventories — 120,091 8,652 — 128,743
Other current assets 4,484 14,488 965 — 19,937
Total current assets 26,103 315,908 18,420 — 360,431
Property, plant, and equipment, net — 116,628 12,947 — 129,575
Goodwill — 229,558 6,486 — 236,044
Acquired intangibles — 77,259 4,956 — 82,215
Other assets 2,931 2,964 — — 5,895
Investment in subsidiaries 573,664 32,404 — (606,068 ) —

$602,698 $774,721 $42,809 $(606,068 ) $814,160
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $— $74,751 $6,495 $— $81,246
Accrued expenses 5,469 45,561 1,409 — 52,439
Current maturities of long-term debt — 400 — — 400
Total current liabilities 5,469 120,712 7,904 — 134,085
Long-term debt 210,000 3,200 — — 213,200
Deferred income taxes — 47,717 2,055 — 49,772
Other non-current liabilities — 29,428 446 — 29,874
Shareholders’ equity 387,229 573,664 32,404 (606,068 ) 387,229

$602,698 $774,721 $42,809 $(606,068 ) $814,160

82

Edgar Filing: GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC. - Form 10-K

125



Table of Contents

GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $— $75,856 $21,183 $— $97,039
Accounts receivable, net — 79,356 10,726 — 90,082
Intercompany balances 23,618 (1,655 ) (21,963 ) — —
Inventories — 111,676 9,476 — 121,152
Other current assets 7,578 5,722 827 — 14,127
Total current assets 31,196 270,955 20,249 — 322,400
Property, plant, and equipment, net — 119,587 12,165 — 131,752
Goodwill — 334,123 7,051 — 341,174
Acquired intangibles — 86,014 5,763 — 91,777
Other assets 3,415 3,643 1 — 7,059
Investment in subsidiaries 652,689 33,259 — (685,948 ) —

$687,300 $847,581 $45,229 $(685,948 ) $894,162
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $— $62,464 $7,161 $— $69,625
Accrued expenses 5,551 42,418 1,910 — 49,879
Current maturities of long-term debt — 409 — — 409
Total current liabilities 5,551 105,291 9,071 — 119,913
Long-term debt 210,000 3,598 — — 213,598
Deferred income taxes — 52,746 2,378 — 55,124
Other non-current liabilities — 33,257 521 — 33,778
Shareholders’ equity 471,749 652,689 33,259 (685,948 ) 471,749

$687,300 $847,581 $45,229 $(685,948 ) $894,162
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries,
Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities of continuing
operations

$(13,437 ) $40,820 $5,200 $— $32,583

Net cash used in operating activities
of discontinued operations — (41 ) — — (41 )

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities (13,437 ) 40,779 5,200 — 32,542

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Other investing activities — 277 — — 277
Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment — (19,286 ) (4,005 ) — (23,291 )

Net proceeds from sale of property
and equipment — 5,989 3 — 5,992

Net cash used in investing activities — (13,020 ) (4,002 ) — (17,022 )
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Long-term debt payments — (407 ) — — (407 )
Payment of deferred financing fees — (35 ) — — (35 )
Purchase of treasury stock at market
prices (575 ) — — — (575 )

Intercompany financing 13,317 (11,707 ) (1,610 ) — —
Tax benefit from equity compensation100 — — — 100
Net proceeds from issuance of
common stock 595 — — — 595

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 13,437 (12,149 ) (1,610 ) — (322 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash — — (1,627 ) — (1,627 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents — 15,610 (2,039 ) — 13,571

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year — 75,856 21,183 — 97,039

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period $— $91,466 $19,144 $— $110,610
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries,
Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities of continuing
operations

$(9,023 ) $64,994 $4,333 $— $60,304

Net cash used in operating activities
of discontinued operations — (9 ) — — (9 )

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities (9,023 ) 64,985 4,333 — 60,295

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash
acquired — (5,536 ) — — (5,536 )

Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment — (11,719 ) (3,221 ) — (14,940 )

Net proceeds from sale of property
and equipment — 12,592 18 — 12,610

Net cash used in investing activities — (4,663 ) (3,203 ) — (7,866 )
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Long-term debt payments (204,000 ) (1,094 ) — — (205,094 )
Proceeds from long-term debt 210,000 — — — 210,000
Payment of deferred financing fees (3,858 ) (41 ) — — (3,899 )
Payment of note redemption fees (3,702 ) — — — (3,702 )
Purchase of treasury stock at market
prices (714 ) — — — (714 )

Intercompany financing 10,577 (9,494 ) (1,083 ) — —
Tax benefit from equity compensation 72 — — — 72
Net proceeds from issuance of
common stock 648 — — — 648

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 9,023 (10,629 ) (1,083 ) — (2,689 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash — — (729 ) — (729 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents — 49,693 (682 ) — 49,011

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year — 26,163 21,865 — 48,028

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period $— $75,856 $21,183 $— $97,039
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GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 
(in thousands)

Gibraltar
Industries, Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities of continuing
operations

$(16,435 ) $58,628 $8,039 $— $50,232

Net cash (used in) operating activities
of discontinued operations — (151 ) — — (151 )

Net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities (16,435 ) 58,477 8,039 — 50,081

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash
acquired — (42,366 ) (2,705 ) — (45,071 )

Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment — (9,868 ) (1,483 ) — (11,351 )

Net proceeds from sale of property
and equipment — 311 348 — 659

Net cash used in investing activities — (51,923 ) (3,840 ) — (55,763 )
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Long-term debt payments — (473 ) — — (473 )
Payment of deferred financing fees — (18 ) — — (18 )
Purchase of treasury stock at market
prices (970 ) — — — (970 )

Intercompany financing 17,116 (14,590 ) (2,526 ) — —
Tax benefit from equity compensation 11 (1 ) — — 10
Net proceeds from issuance of
common stock 278 — — — 278

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 16,435 (15,082 ) (2,526 ) — (1,173 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash — — 766 — 766

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents — (8,528 ) 2,439 — (6,089 )

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year — 34,691 19,426 — 54,117

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period $— $26,163 $21,865 $— $48,028
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22. QUARTERLY UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA

GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
QUARTERLY UNAUDITED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

2014 Quarters Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Total

Net sales $191,032 $234,960 $234,101 $201,994 $862,087
Gross profit $29,864 $40,123 $41,578 $28,480 $140,045
Income (loss) from operations $333 $14,730 $18,392 $(103,872 ) $(70,417 )
Interest expense $3,640 $3,691 $3,657 $3,433 $14,421
(Loss) income from continuing
operations $(2,086 ) $6,431 $9,571 $(95,708 ) $(81,792 )

Loss from discontinued operations $— $— $(31 ) $(1 ) $(32 )
Net (loss) income $(2,086 ) $6,431 $9,540 $(95,709 ) $(81,824 )
(Loss) income per share from
continuing operations:
Basic $(0.07 ) $0.21 $0.31 $(3.08 ) $(2.63 )
Diluted $(0.07 ) $0.21 $0.31 $(3.08 ) $(2.63 )
Loss per share from discontinued
operations:
Basic $— $— $(0.01 ) $— $—
Diluted $— $— $(0.01 ) $— $—

2013 Quarters Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Total

Net sales $196,801 $224,519 $217,412 $188,835 $827,567
Gross profit $36,177 $44,706 $41,762 $35,452 $158,097
Income (loss) from operations $5,196 $16,283 $(6,152 ) $6,153 $21,480
Interest expense $11,160 $3,690 $3,828 $3,811 $22,489
(Loss) income from continuing
operations $(3,643 ) $7,732 $(13,727 ) $4,009 $(5,629 )

Loss from discontinued operations $(4 ) $— $— $— $(4 )
Net (loss) income $(3,647 ) $7,732 $(13,727 ) $4,009 $(5,633 )
(Loss) income per share from
continuing operations:
Basic $(0.12 ) $0.25 $(0.44 ) $0.13 $(0.18 )
Diluted $(0.12 ) $0.25 $(0.44 ) $0.13 $(0.18 )
Income per share from discontinued
operations:
Basic $— $— $— $— $—
Diluted $— $— $— $— $—
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls as of the end of the period covered in this
report. Based upon that evaluation and the definition of disclosure controls and procedures contained in Rule
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of the end of such period the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The management of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting for the Company, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework). Based on the Company’s evaluation,
management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2014.
The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has been audited
by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included
below in this Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined by Rule 13a-15(f))
that occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2014 that have materially affected the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Gibraltar Industries, Inc.

We have audited Gibraltar Industries, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based
on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) (the COSO criteria). Gibraltar Industries, Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Gibraltar Industries, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related
consolidated statement of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2014 of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. and our report dated February 24, 2015
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Buffalo, New York
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
Information regarding directors and executive officers of the Company, as well as the required disclosures with
respect to the Company’s audit committee financial expert, is incorporated herein by reference to the information
included in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the
end of the Company’s 2014 fiscal year.
The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to the President and Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, and other senior financial officers and executives of the Company. The
complete text of this Code of Ethics is available in the corporate governance section of our website at
www.gibraltar1.com. The Company does not intend to incorporate the contents of our website into this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information regarding executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to the information included in the
Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the end of the
Company’s 2014 fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by
reference to the information included in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement which will be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the end of the Company’s 2014 fiscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated herein by reference to the
information included in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Commission within 120
days after the end of the Company’s 2014 fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Information regarding principal accounting fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to the information
included in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement which will be filed with the Commission within 120 days after the
end of the Company’s 2014 fiscal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) The following financial statements are included:

(i) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

(iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2014,
2013, and 2012

(iv) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013

(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

(vi) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012

(vii) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) The following Financial Statement Schedules for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 are
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(i) Quarterly Unaudited Financial Data (included in notes to consolidated financial statements)

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because the conditions requiring their filing do not
exist, or because the required information is provided in the consolidated financial statements, including
the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits: the index of exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K included herein is set forth on the
attached Exhibit Index beginning on page 99.

(b) Other Information:

Not applicable
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GIBRALTAR INDUSTRIES, INC.
By /s/ Frank G. Heard

Frank G. Heard
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: February 24, 2015

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ Frank G. Heard President, Chief Executive Officer (principal
executive officer) and Director

February 24, 2015
Frank G. Heard

/s/ Kenneth W. Smith Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial and accounting
officer)

February 24, 2015

Kenneth W. Smith

/s/ Brian J. Lipke Chairman of the Board February 24, 2015
Brian J. Lipke

/s/ William J. Colombo Director February 24, 2015
William J. Colombo

/s/ Jane L. Corwin Director February 24, 2015
Jane L. Corwin

/s/ Craig A. Hindman Director February 24, 2015
Craig A. Hindman

/s/ Vinod M. Khilnani Director February 24, 2015
Vinod M. Khilnani

/s/ William P. Montague Director February 24, 2015
William P. Montague

/s/ Arthur A. Russ, Jr. Director February 24, 2015
Arthur A. Russ, Jr.

/s/ Robert E. Sadler, Jr. Director February 24, 2015
Robert E. Sadler, Jr.
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

3.1

Certificate of Incorporation of registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-135908)), as amended by Certificate of
Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. filed May 22, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22,
2012).

3.2 Amended and Restated By Laws of Gibraltar Industries, Inc. effective January 1, 2015 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 5, 2015)

4.1 Specimen Common Share Certificate (incorporated by reference number to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-69304))

4.2
Indenture for 6.25% Notes dated as of January 31, 2013, among the Company, the Guarantors (as
defined therein) and the Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 1, 2013).

10.1*
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 1, 2015 between the Registrant
and Brian J. Lipke (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 5, 2015)

10.2*

Employment Agreement dated as of May 9, 2014 between the Registrant and Frank G. Heard
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 15,
2014), as amended by Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2015 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2015)

10.3*
Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Brian J. Lipke dated
December 23, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed December 23, 2013)

10.4*
Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Frank G. Heard dated January 1, 2015
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 5, 2015)

10.5* Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Kenneth W. Smith (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24, 2009)

10.6* Change in Control Agreement between the Company and Paul M. Murray (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24 , 2009)

10.7* Consulting Agreement between the Company and Henning N. Kornbrekke (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 4, 2013)

10.8* Gibraltar 401(k) Plan Amendment and Restatement Effective October 1, 2004 as amended by the First,
Second, and Third Amendments to the Amendment and Restatement Effective October 1, 2004
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(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004)

10.9* Gibraltar Deferred Compensation Plan Amended and Restated, effective January 1, 2009 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24, 2009)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit

10.10*

Amended and Restated Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 21, 2006), as
amended by Equity Incentive Plan, dated May 18, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 21, 2009)

10.11*

Fourth Amendment and Restatement of the Gibraltar Industries, Inc. Management Stock Purchase
Plan, dated June 27, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 27, 2012), as amended by adding an Appendix Applicable to Canadian
Residents, dated June 11, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed June 17, 2014.

10.12*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. Omnibus Code Section 409A Compliance Policy, dated December 30, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 6, 2009)

10.13* Summary Description of Annual Management Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24, 2009)

10.14*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Restricted Units (Long Term
Incentive) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed May 25, 2005)

10.15*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Non-Qualified Option
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 25,
2005)

10.16* Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award (Retirement) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2011)

10.17*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Performance Units
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 6, 2012)

10.18*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Performance Units
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2013)

10.19*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Performance Units
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 6, 2014)

10.20*
Gibraltar Industries, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Form of Award of Restricted Units dated January
2, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 6, 2014)

10.21
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Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated October 11, 2011 among Gibraltar Industries,
Inc. and Gibraltar Steel Corporation of New York, as borrowers, the lenders parties thereto, Key Bank
National Association, as administrative agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as co-syndication agent,
Bank of America, N.A., as co-syndication agent, M&T Bank, as co-documentation agent, RBS
Citizens, National Association, as co-documentation agent, and HSBC Bank USA, National
Association, as co-documentation agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 13, 2011)
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21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document **

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document**

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document**

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document **

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document **

* Document is a management contract or compensatory plan or agreement.
** Submitted electronically with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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